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P R O C E E D I N G S 

MR. MUNDT: This meeting of the C larks town Board is now in session. 

We have met here on a special hearing to hear the petition of The Dells, Inc. 

The procedure this evening will be the reading of the public notice. We 

will then hear the attorney for the petitioner and any of those in favor of the 

petition. Then a statement will be made by Mr. James Ward, the County Planning 

Director. We will have a brief recess, and then we will listen to those who are 

opposed to the petition. There will be a rebuttal, a reading of the lettera for 

and against, and an adjournment. 

Each person who wishes to say something this evening should come forward 

and sit here in the witness chair and give hia name and address to our stenographer. 

Mr. Blauvelt, will you read the public notice? 

(The Notice of Public Hearing was read by Mr. Blauvelt.) 

MR. MUNDT: Is the attorney for the petitioner here? 

MR. FESTA: That is correct. 

MR. MUNDT: Would you care to step forward, either Mr. Festa or Mr. Trach-

tenberg? 

MR. FESTA: I would just like to make a general introductory statement 

here. We would like to submit at this time the petition which was already filed 

with the Board and we wish it to be made part of the record. We also submit, as 

Exhibit A, the map also as part of the record. 

In addition to that, at this particular time the petitioner is submitting 

a brief in support of their petition. We are now distributing copies to the Board 

members and the Town Attorney. 
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MR. MUNDT: This brief sums up the nature of the petition? 

MR. FESTA: That is right. It is explanatory. 

(The Petition, the Map and the Brief above referred to were received as 

part of the Record.) 

MR. FESTA: At this particular time, in explaining the positionof 

the petitioner, my colleague, Mr. Trachtenberg, will expound on what is in 

the brief. 

MR. MDNDT: Mr. Trachtenberg. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: Mr. Mundt, gentlemen of the Board, and the ladies 

and gentlemen who are assembled here tonight, the petitioner asks for the 

following, and I will give you a description of the rezoning proposals as 

they are set forth in the petition. 

FIRST, we ask for a re zoning of the area — and I will indicate it 

on the map here — which is known as Parcel D, which consists of approximately 

270 acres, part of which lies in an RA district and part of which lies in an 

RA-1 district, to an LO district, which is the nonresidential area. 

Ve ask for a rezonlng of Parcel B and Parcel 6, consisting of approx

imately 27-and-one-half-acres, from the RA-1 zoning to the non-residential LO 

zone. 

Ve ask for a rezoning of Parcel E, which lies at the corner of Little 

Tor Road and Phillips Hill Road, consisting of about three acres, to an RO 

district, this for the purpose of a medical center, and that only; and then 

for a rezoning of Parcel A, lying on the east side of Little Tor Road, con

sisting of approximately 120 acres, from RA-1 to an R-22. 

One area that lies just to the east of Crum Creek, consisting of 93 

acres, now in the one acre zone, remains as is. Ve ask for no change there. 

If the petition is granted, the comprehensive plan submitted by the 

petitioner will present the following picture, designed to create a development 

plan of a major portion of the acreage owned by this petitioner consisting now 

of about 760 acres. A summary is as follows: 

Approximately 550 acres will be in the non-residential LO district, 

and it will be completely devoid of housing and will eliminate approximately 

some 500 homes. 

The three acres in the RO zone will be earmarked for a medical arts 

building. 

The 93 acres, as I have pointed out, remains in the one acre zone. 

It is on the east side of Crum Creek. 

And 120 acres along Little Tor Road will be in the R-22 or the one-

half acre, zoning. 

As to the advantage to the town if the petition is granted, the School 

Board has recognized the need for industrial development in its report here 

made February 15*, I960, and I refer to page 3. I quote: 

"It is evident that accelerated effort should be made to develop and 

encourage desirable commercial and industrial growth in the district area," 

referring to the Clarkstown district. "There is no other current source, 
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other than real estate taxes, that is permissible to yield the necessary local 

revenue for school purposes." 

All thinking officials of Clarkstown who have the welfare of the community 

at heart endorse the sentiments of the School Board in this regard. The petitioner 

has also recognized the need for desirable commercial and industrial growth in 

Clarkstown. The petition now before this Board is designed to a further that kind 

of a plan. 

The present zoning ordinance, now in being a matter of five years and at 

best experimental and unrealistic, has not created any relief to the taxpayer by 

its design or construction. Notwithstanding the contrived spot zoning of the 

Clarkstown Zoning Ordinance, it has not slowed down the progress of a low-priced 

inferior home construction in Clarkstown and, factually, the Town of Clarkstown 

is one of the fastest home developing areas in the State of New York. 

The present ordinance designed inferior land sites for industrial purposes 

and, as a result, in five years only two fairly substantial firms were attracted to 

Clarkstown and built industrial plants. A further result was the increase on 

the taxburden of the residents of Clarkstown and the attendant expensive local 

controversy which has been costly to the Town and has pitted neighbor against 

neighbor. 

Presently the taxpayer bears an excessive burden, and in the future the 

tax burden of Clarkstown will unquestionably be strained to its utmost because of 

the lack of good commercial and industrial development. 

The Dells, Inc., the petitioner, has submitted the only workable comprehen

sive plan in Clarkstown since the inception of the Zoning Ordinance five years ago. 

The petition is realistic, is practical, and has been recognized by the leaders 

of thecommunity asa proper plan for fine industrial growth and which will relieve 

the taxpayer of his ever-increasing burden, providing the highest type of industry 

in the United States in its laboratory office zone. 

The comprehensive plan submitted by the petitioner is not just a dream, 

but hasalmost reached realization. Over 40 companies of national and international 

repute have examined the property and have evidenced more than a passing interest. 

The petitioner has received tremendous assistance from the Rockland County Industrial 

Development Committee, and this committee and the petitioner firmly believe that a 

laboratory office research center can be developed in the near future. 

Those of you who are familiar with the work of this committee know how 

constant they have been and the efforts they have put forth in behalf of bringing 

industry to this county. 

Now a few words with regard to the opposition to .the petition. 

Those who oppose the petition have raised arguments that have no basis in 

fact or in law. The propoganda circulated by this group attempts to destroy the 

thinking of town officials and serves but to confuse the taxpayer. 

One of the things that I can point to of recent origin is an ad that appeared 

in The Citizen within the past week, and a digest of that ad clearly indicates 

that the whole case or all the facts are therein stated, although it says "Do you 

have the facts on The Dell's case", and not a word about the LO district. 



PH - 2/24/60 

Zoning by itself is not static, but if fairly drawn and properly 

administered should change with the needs of a community. 

Nobody can quarrel with that statement, despite the attempts to keep 

things static. 

It is the duty of those administering the Zoning Ordinance to be 

practical and recognize the needs of the Town. The paramount need is a com

prehensive plan for development which by itself will relieve the taxpayer 

and promote economic growth. The health, welfare and safety of the community 

at large should be the only consideration in determining a zone change. 

I repeat that, because that is important in view of the ad that ap

peared, and I will touch on that later on. 

To freeze a zoning ordinance, as the opposition seeks to do, is both 

detrimental to the community and illegal. Freezing of the present ordinance 

has only resulted in the excessive building of inferior homes on plots of 

less than one acre. It has further created a "Black Market1* as far as 

building plots are concerned, driving up the price of land to the builder or 

developer and reducing the value of the home placed on the land. 

Naturally, if you don't have the supply, you have a Black Market, the 

price goes up, and if the price of the land is going up, it has to come from 

somewhere. So the house becomes inferior. 

Presently, because of the type of home constructed in CIarkstown, the 

market for better homes is infinxesmal and a large market for homes ranges 

from between $17,000 and $22,000. There are no sewers in 95 percent of the 

developments, there is improper drainage — and who knows that better than you 

gentlemen — public water is scrace, and roads are built with minimum re

quirements. This is caused solely because the high price of land gives a 

developer the ability to dispose of an inferior house because there is so 

large a demand for homes. Buyers find no competition amongst builders, 

which competition naturally would result in better value if there was such 

competition. 

The petitioner is one of the largest taxpayers in Clarkstown, 

presently paying between $35tOOO and $40,000 per year in taxes. 

Improper development of the petitioner's land can only hurt the 

petitioner as the largest land holder in Clarkstown. 

Mind you, we take that position. We make that stand. We are more 

concerned about the zoning situation in Clarkstown than anyone else in 

this township# 

The liquidation of the petitioner's property haphazardly could 

result in unlimited harm to this community. 

Gentlemen, we make that statement. 

This the petitioner will not do, and therefore seeks practical 

relief from this Town Board so that the petitioner's comprehensive plans 

can be developed. And that is our answer to the ad. 

The objections to the petition raise the bugaboo of town zoning. 

Even the Zoning Ordinance of 1955 recognizes the principle of averaging, 

which is apparent in Article 8, Sec. 8.4. Certainly the comprehensive 
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plan submitted by the petitioner was not considered as a possibility in 1955. 

Does this mean, however, that if times and conditions have changed, this Town 

Board should not recognize the purpose of the petition, or the need for a change? 

Now a comment with regard to the petitioner's comprehensive plans as a 

whole. 

On Parcel A, consisting of about 120 acres, the petitioner is asking for 

practical relief because the Zoning Ordinance is confiscatory as applied to the 

petitioner's property. On Parcel A, consisting of 120 acres, the petitionercan 

presently build about 120 homes. This is a large tract of land. If houses are 

to be built on this property in a proper fashion, there should be sewers, water, 

and roads. There is no argument there. 

The petitioner asks for an additional 75 homes to be included in this 

tract, or a total of about 190 houses. The monies to be received from such de

velopment are to be used for the development of the balance of this petitioner's 

property. 

To show its good faith and its intention to build a laboratory office 

development on the balance of the 550 acres, the petitioner has placed said 550 

acres in a non-residential district, eliminating from the foreseeable future 

approximately 550 homes. 

Let us look at the arithmetic. 760 acres present a possibility of 760 

homes. What are we asking for? We are asking for 190 homes over the whole area 

averaged out over the whole area, and eliminating the difference between the 

amount possible and theamount that we asked for. Is there any complaint about 

that? 

To properly develop the laboratory office district, large sums of money 

will be needed to provide sewers, water and roads. In other communities seeking 

such type of laboratory office development, the town pays for these improvements. 

Recently Cornell University prepared plans for the development of a new 

industry research park. They have produced a brochure, and let me quote from 

this brochure that was prepared. 

"Partners with the university" — speaking of Cornell — "in the 

industry research park are Tompkins County, the Town of Lansing, and Cayuga 

Heights by providing sewers and roads to the Park. 

That will show you to what extent communities will go and to what extent 

public funds are used to develop the very thing we are talking about. 

They go further to say: "How that public funds have been pledged to 

the success of the venture, it has become a matter of public concern that the 

Park development be of maximum benefit to the Ithaca Region." 

It can therefore readily be seen in enlightened communities that the 

effert lies not only with the land owners, but with the town itself, assuming 

the responsibility of providing the facilities necessary for the development of 

such a center. 

I will tell you what we will do. Let us take that a step further. 

We all recognize the need for this kind of develorment in this township. 
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I say this: Tf the town will build the roads, provide the sewers and 

provide the water, T will recommend my client to withdraw that portion of 

the petition that relates to the A parcel. 

But the petitioner do<=s not ask the Town of Clarkstown to provide 

such facilities, as other communities do. The petitioner asks only to he 

able to liquidate a small piece of its holdings, to wit, 120 acres, so 

that the petitioner itself can provide these facilities necessary to de

velop a research center which would be a credit to the community, provide 

jobs for its residents who have great difficulty in commuting, and will 

provide a source of revenue not only to the Town, but to the businessman 

and the l&cal tradesman — and I have heard and you have heard that amny 

a workman travels 50 and 60 miles or more a day to a .job. 

Everyone knows that Mr. Richard May, the planning expert, had much 

to do with the adoption, the planning and the drafting, I will say, of the 

present ordinance, and the same planning expert, Mr. Richard May, who drew 

this Zoning Ordinance in 1955 and who is now the spearhead of the opposition 

to the petition herein, has been on both sides of the fence, as far as one-

half acre is proposed. I quote from a news letter issued by the firm of 

Raymond and May associates, of which firm the said Richard May is a member. 

"SCHOOL COSTS VERSUS TAX REVENUES. 

"A recent study undertaken by Raymond and May Associates for Deed 

Realty Corporation, of Briarcliff Manor, New York" — and from that I gather, 

and it seems evident, that this firm is working now for a real estate con

cern, or a development concern —"disclosed that in that village, on the 

average, homes developed on one acre plots pay approximately $600 less per house 

in property taxes than it costs to educate the children living therein. The 

corresponding deficit in the case of homes developed on 12,000 square foot 

lots amounts to only $138." 

That is a surprising revelation, if you stop to think about that for 

a minute. Just think of the vast difference of the deficit of $600 on a one 

acre house as against a deficit of $138 on a 12,000 square foot plot. 

I quote further: 

"Surprisingly, in a development on half acre lots, due to the high 

price of the homes and to the very low incidence of school children, each 

house represented a profit of $241. The above figures emphasize the fact 

that, contrary to prevailing opinion, up zoning to larger-sized residential 

lots does not" — does not — "necessarily contribute to the reduction in 

school taxes." 

That isa very pertinent observation and statement. 

It will readily be seen that half acre zoning by itself does not 

create a tax burden and, to the contrary, is a lesser burden on the com

munity than larger-sized residential lots. 

Presently 60 acres, consisting of part of the petitioner's golf 

course, lies in the laboratory office zone. That's this area here (in

dicating), right through here. There has been a lot of expression by 
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those who looked at the area of the desirability of that spot. Many of the firms 

who have been up like that corner. That means that the six holes of golf in that 

area must be removed from that area, and the only place to put it is on the east 

side of Zukor Road, in this area (indicating), which incidentally along the creel 

is kind of low, swampy and wet, and certainly is not desirable for housing, be

cause if there ever would be a drainage problem, it would be there. 

The cost of the removal of the golf course, or that area of the golf course, 

is about $150,000, and it takes at least two to three years. As you can readily 

understand, this thing has to grow and be cultivated, and so forth. If the golf 

course is moved, the land could then be placed in the research area contemplated 

for the development, and the removal of the golf course must start immediately 

if such laboratory office development is to make progress. 

Naturally, if you want to move it, you want to move it into a proper zone. 

So that area must be rezoned so that there will be no conflict and no non-conform-

I.Q ing use. LO is the only zone in which we can have a golf course. 

00 The expenditure for sewers, water, main roads, removal of the golf course, 
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to complete the development as planned and as other commmnities do, but is merely 

asking for what? And the nub of the whole thing is just 75 houses, which on the 

total average still eliminates some 500. That is why the request is made to 

place this Parcel A in the 1.22 zone. The cost of this entire development will 

be at the petitioner's own expense. 

If Little Tor Road is examined by this Town Board, or by anyone, it will 

be noted that the area between Hempstead Road and Phillips Hill Road now has 

been utilized with the building of homes of a very fine class and that there is 

no more room available in this area. The normal progress of this development 

is now in the area on Little Tor Road commencing at Phillips Hill Road and 

running northward from the said intersection along the land owned by this 

petitioner. 

In conclusion, the petitioner's request for related and closely integrated 

changes in the zoning map constitutes a well-considered comprehensive plan for 

the orderly, long-range and economic development of the Town of Clarkstown, 

and we request that the petitionbe granted. 

At this point, Mr. Mundt, and gentlemen of the Board, T am asking Mr. 

Nemeroff to take the chair here, and he is available to you, to members of this 

Board, or to anyone who is present, for questioning about any phase of this 

petition. 

Mr. Mundt: TheBoard has no questions of Mr. Nemeroff. 

Unless you have a statement to make, Mr. Nemeroff, you may make it. 

MR. NH1ER0FF: Not at this time. 

MR. TRACHTENBEFG: May I ask if there if anyone else who wishes to ask a 

question? 

I 

I 

I 



P/h - 2/24/60 

MP. MUNDT: The procedure which we have set up is that those in favor 

of this petition will speak first and then those against will speak. Those 

who are against will then have an opportunity, if they choose while speaking, 

to ask auestions of you. 

MR. TFACHTENBERG: All right. 

MR. MUNDT: We will first hear a representative of those in favor of 

the petition. 

Is there anyone else here in favor of the petition who wishes to be 

heard? 

MR. HAROLD EDWIN PATEPSON (Beverly Place, New City): I am in favor 

of the petition hut I have nothing more to say. 

MR. GEORGE SMITH (Little Tor Road, New City): 

Mr. Chairman, friends and neighbors, in reference to Mr. Nemeroff, 

we of Smith Farms have nothing short of kind words to say. There have been 

many occasions during the past seasons when we were handicapped because of 

lack of water facilities, pasture shortages, and other offsets. In seeking 

means to overcome these Offsets, we made requests to Mr. Nemeroff. To these 

there was always a kind Myes" and never a refusal to our solicitations. 

Over a period of a decade there have been*many times when our agree

ments with Mr. Nemeroff were verbal and without contract. Despite this, we 

have on many occasions took things for granted and assumed that we had the 

same privilege as enjoyed under contract. After the season was over, there 

was nothing but fair treatment, contract or no contract. Thank you. 

MR. T. I. BRENNAN (Brownsell Road, New City): I would like to 

ask a question. 

MR. MUNDT: THERE will be no questions yet. 

MR. BRE3fNAN: As a point of order, the question is, this man rents 

land from Nemeroff. That should be pointed out in the record. 

MR. MUNDT: I take it you are opposed to the petition. 

MR. BRENNAN: I just want to clarify the record. 

MR. MUNDT: Any clarification can be made after those who are 

opposed wish to speak. Everyone will be given a fair change to ask 

questions or to make their point. But in order to have an orderly 

procedure, we will first take things in order. 

G E O R G E S M I T H Appeared as a witness and testified as follows: 

EXAMINATION BY MR. TRACHTENBERG: 

Q Mr. Smith, do you own any land? 

A I represent Smith Farms. My brother and I have about 150 or 160 

acres. 

Q How long has your family owned this land? 

A Three or four generations. 

Q Where is it located? 

A Across from Mr. Nemeroff, and some of it off Old Phillips Hill 

Road. 
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Q When you say across, you mean on Little Tor Road? 

A Yes. 

MIR. MacDONALD DEMING: I thought you just ruled that this was not the 

procedure to be followed. 

MR. MUNDT: That is correct. 

The Chair was in error in allowing these questions to proceed. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: I am sorry. 

MR. MUNDT: IS there anyone else here in favor of the petition who wishes 

to be heard? 

MR. HORACE CRAMP (347 Little Tor Road North, New City): There is very 

little I wish to say that has not already been said, except that I am in favor 

of the petitioner. I think he has a very good proposition here for us. 

That's all. 

Mr. MUNDT: Is there anyone else in favor of the petition who wishes to 

be heard? 

(No response) 

MR. MUNDT: We will then move to the next point, a statement by Mr. Ward. 

Mr. Ward, would you come forward, please? 

White Mr. Ward is coming forward, again, those who may wish to ask Mr. Ward 

a question should wait, assuming they are opposed to the petition. 

MB. JAMES H. WARD: I am Planning Director of the Rockland County Planning 

Board. 

I would like to make a statement, gentlemen, and the purpose of it is 

simply to clear up, I hope, a misunderstanding which has arisen and grown over 

the past week or two. 

I think the best way I can do it is to read a letter to Mr. Mundt from me, 

which I think he would like to have me do. This letter is dated February 23r€. 

MR. NORTHRUP: Mr. Ward, are you speaking for yourself as as individual or 

for the Rockland County Planning Board? 

MR. WARD: lam speaking for the Rockland County Planning Board in this 

letter, although it is signed by me. I think theletter will make that clear. 

The letter is addressed to Mr. Mundt, the Supervisor, and it is concerning 

The Dell rezoning petition. The text of the letter is this: 

MThe County Planning Board, at its meeting Thursday evening," — this is 

last Thursday — "reaffirmed its policy that staff members should attend Town 

Board meetings, or public hearings on planning matters, only at the request of 

the Town officials. 

"They agreed with me that I can make a statement or can give an opinion on 

professional matters only in my official capacity since this inevitably would be 

the interpretation. 

"Though it may be a fine line to draw, since my opinion on the previous 

petition is a matter of record, I was asked by the group in question simply to 

appear and make a statement, and this was the question I asked of the Town Board: 

Whether I should or not. 

"The Board also agreed" — and I think this is the important paragraph — 
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"that their recommendations to the Clarkstown Planning Board on the Dellwood 

petition last March 13to represent their orinion, and that since these also 

are on record, no further statement is necessary unless there has been a sub

stantial change in the proposal of which we are not aware," 

I hope that states the position clearly enough. The effect of all this 

is that if T speak here tonight, I must speak in my official capacity, and 

that if there has been no substantial chanp-eor difference in these petitions, 

then our remarks last March 13* are still valid and reaffirmed. If there is a 

substantial difference, or a substantial change, then the new petition is a 

thing that I cannot speak on at all, because it has not been officially re

ferred to the County Planning Board, much less to me, nor has it been dis

cussed between us. In fact, I saw it only as recently as this afternoon. 

MR. MUNDT: Are there any questions by the Board of Mr. Ward? 

MR. NORTHRUP: No. 

MR. WELCHMAN: No. 

MR. MUNDT: Thank you, Mr. Ward. 

MR. MUNDT: There will be a ten minute recess. 

(Recess taken.) 

MR. MUNDT: The meeting of the Town Board, the special hearing, is now 

resumed. 

We are now going to listen to those opposing the petition. Before we do, 

one additional gentleman just came in. He would like to be heard For. 

Mr. Damiani, do you care to take the witness seat, please? 

MR. PAT DAMIANI (25 Twin Elms Lane, New City): Mr. Chairman, I represent 

some of the local union laboring people. 

MR. BRENNAN: What union? 

MR. DAMIANI: I represent the Electricians in Rockland County and part 

of Orange and I represent the Rockland County Building and Trades Council. 

We discussed this over the period of the last year. Time and time again 

we have asked our people, and the people are heartedly in favor of getting this 

request through for Mr. Nemeroff. We feel thatThe Dells petition will bring in 

much work for our people. Many of our people are travelling from 50 to 100 

miles a day to gain employment. We can use this work locally. 

We represent some 6,000 members in the building trades. Right now about 

5,000 are travelling. 

MR. NORTHRUP: 6,000 in the county? 

MR. DAMIANI: Yes. We have some building trades people here. If you 

would like to have them stand up so that the people will know I am speaking 

for the trades and not for Pat Damiani, they can do so. 

MR. MUNDT: I think we can take your word for it, unless any other 

individual wants to speak for the petitioner. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: Perhaps it misrht be well that they be recognised and 

their names be put on the record. 

MR. MUNDT: How does the Board feel about that? 

MR. NORTHRUP: If they would like to be recognized, I am willing. 

I 

I 

I 
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MR. WILLIAM KEPNAN: Then you have to put on the names of everyone objecting 

to it. 

MP. TRACHTFNBEPG: There is no objection to that. 

MR. MUNDT: We have .just set up a new procedure. 

Those in favor of this petition representing Mr. D^miani's group, would you 

care to stand and give your name and address? 

MR. DeMAIO: Gerry BeMaio. I live at 10 Fanley Avenue, New City. 

MR. TOURER: James Thurer, 51? Hall Avenue, New City, Local 363, Electricians. 

MR. MUNDT: Are there any others present who wish to be lister For? 

MR. TRAVAGLINI: Nicholas Travasrlini, Kings Highway, Valley Cottage. 

MR. MUNDT: Any others? 

MR. GUBITOSE: Nunzio D. Gubitose, 3^ Schreiver Lane, New City. 

MR. EBNER: Edward Ebner, 32 John Street, New City. 

MR. BRENNAN: What local? 

MR. EBNER: 363, Electricians. 

MR. DAMIANI: Jim Damiani, 25 Twin Elms Lane, New Cit; Local 363. 

MR. MUNDT: Are there any more? 

MR. COLLINS: Thomas Collins, 20 South Congers Avenue, Congers; Local 363. 

MR. MUNDT: We don*t need the locals. 

MR. DRESCHER: William Drescher, Highway Avenue, Congers. v 

MR. MUNDT: Are there any more? v 

(No response.) 

MR. MUNDT: We will now hear from the opposition. 

MR. THOMAS KING (80 Saw Mill Road, New City): I want to know if any member 

of the School Board is to appear this evening. 

MR. MUNDT: Not to our knowledge. We had a member of the School Board, 

Dean Seifried, appear two weeks ago. 

MR. KING: I am trying to understand what relevance their recent report 

which I read in The Citizen may have to this particular petition. I have three 

questions in mind. You perhaps might be able to answer them, or someone ac

quainted with the school situation might be able to help me out in that way. 

Do you think that is fair? 

MR. MUNDT: Do you wish to speak as opi osed? 

MR. KING: I want to find out some information, if I may. 

MR. MUNDT: Go right ahead. 

MR. KING: The first question is, on the basis of other developments already 

in New City, what will be the estimated increase in school population as a result 

of this development? 

Is there anybody here who is qualified to answer that? 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: I will say this, that on the basis of the entire acreage 

of 760 acres, it would be a decrease because of the elimination of so many homes. 

MR. KING: That is irrelevant. I am talking about this petition. 

MR. HMEROFF: I would like to answer him later. 

MR. KING: I am opposed to it, but I would like these facts be made public 

and known. We are glibly tossing aside a lot of acreage for housing. We want 
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to know what the impact is ^oing to have on our school. 

MR. MUNDT: As I stated to you, we on the Board cannot speak for the 

School Board. We are acauainted with the facts which Mr. Seifried gave us, 

and in order to answer your question, we will have to go to those facts. 

It cannot be answered right here. 

MP. KING: Perhaps the next question is rhetorical, but can I ask it? 

MR. MUNDT: Surely, if you wish to be on the record. 

MR. KING: Will these children be transported by bus to Street School 

at the taxpayers expense, or will a new school be built, again operated at the 

taxpayers expense? 

MR. MUNDT: That is another question which the Board can pursue with 

the school officials. 

MR. KING: I would like to know what the estimated cost of the taxpayer 

will be of this development per year; in other words, as against what the 

school taxes on the property will be, what will the projected cost be for 

the citizens. 

MR. MUNDT: Town taxes? 

MR. KING: In other words, if you have X number of houses going to provide 

X number of children, but the revenue to those houses will not make up the 

additional children put in the school. 

MR. MUNDT: There acain your question is on record and the Board can 

pursue it if it sees fit. 

As should be pointed out, the Board has met here to get information. 

MR. KING: Did you obtain this information from the School Board? It 

seems very relevant to the problem, sir. I am not trytsg to heckle you. I 

just want to know. 

MR. MUNDT: We obtained comparable information. 

MR. KING: How many children do you think we will get in here? 

MR. MUNDT: We did not obtain information relative to The Dell's 

petition per se. 

MR. KING: Let me conclude, then, that I hope you will take these 

factors into consideration: the problem of transportation and the problem 

of the possibility of building a new school. Those are my two big points. 

And the increased school taxes from it. Never mind the LO. Let us talk 

about the housing and the damage it is going to do to our existing schools. 

MR. MUNDT: The Chair will entertain the proposition that we return to 

procedure, and that those opposed to The Dell's petition stand and come 

forward. 

MR. THOMAS I. BRENNAN (329 North Main Street, New City). I would like 

to make a motion that the report of Dean Seifried that was read here I think 

on February 15* and considered in the passing on three applications, one 

having to do with Nanuet and the oth^r having to do with Doscher's application, 

and then Squadron A, be incorporated into this record so it can be a part of 

this particular record. 

MR. MUNDT: T see no harm in that, e-entlemen. 



MP. WRLCHMAN: We have thos*3 fact? and w» ere certainly roinr to consider 

them, T would pay. 

MR. .̂PKTT̂ AN: So far as the evaluation and determination, thev be made part 

of this record. 

MR. MUNDT: In order to answer Mr. Kinsr's questions, we are going to be 

doing exactly that. 

Is there anyone who would like to be heard in order, rossibly? 

MP. ALAN ANDERSON (South Mountain Foad, New City): 

I would like to say that I am asrainst the petition, Mr. Supervisor and 

members of the Board. I am arainst all phases of the petition, but I would like 

to express a specific opposition to the LO. 

The Dells was granted an 10 area last year and nothing has been done with 

this LO area. It remains exactly as it was. We are now asked to expand it, 

and there seems to be no reason given in the petition, except that the petitioner 

finds the only way he can have a erolf course as a non-conforminguse is by having 

it in LO. I submit that this was not the purpose of LO, to make golf courses. 

It was to vring us industry in the form of laboratory and office to increase our 

tax rate'ables. 

There are provisions in the present zoning ordinance for golf courses, in 

spite of Mr. Trachtenberg's assertion that the only way to have a golf course 

legally is to have LO. You can have a s*olf course under other provisions in the 

law, in fact, under the zoning he presently has the golf course in, which are RA 

and RA-1. 

The only manner in which it cannot have a golf course under RA-1 as a con

forming use is if you run it as a business rather than as a membership club. 

So it is true that it is a non-conforming use at present. But I think it is 

totally wrong to give LO, laboratory office, in ordei to expand the golf course 

or to move it. 

Additionally, I think it was misleading for Mr. Trachtenberg to say there 

would be no houses in the LO area. What he means is that they don't intend to 

have any houses, perhaps. If he will read LO, it allows for houses under certain 

specific conditions. It allows for a great many things besides golf courses. 

That is the conclusion of my statement. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: May I make an observation, please? 

MR. MUNDT: I suggest if you wish to make any kind of rebuttal, you take 

notes. I don't believe anyone will be leaving. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: That is what I am afraid of. 

MR. MUNDT: Your notes or your rebuttal, even if the people do leave, will 

be in the record. These people have a ricrht to be heard as much as those in 

favor have been heard. 

MR. JOHN MASTERS (Centenary, New City): I want to speak particularly 

about the new housing. The petition claims that it is part of a comprehensive 

plan. But it is not part of the comprehensive plan of Clafckstown. These new 

houses, this new Town Zoning, will take place in an area that is totally foreign, 

and from it, it is bound to spread. Mr. Smith across the road willbe perfectly 

justified, when he sees 120 acres down zoned for development on one side of 
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Little Tor DoM, in asking that this down zoning he spread to his side. 

Instead of a comprehensive plan, we will have a ribhon-like development. 

The petitioner also claims that this conforms to the character of the 

surroundinr territory, hut is does not conform to it, except that some half a 

mile south on Little Tor T?oad a new development begins, which is a very nice 

one, T know, hut it is not close, and I think it is in the present zoning. 

I think it has conformed to the zoning laws. 

I think one interesting point here is also that the petitioner himself 

proposes to keep his present zoning for his own two or three houses in the 

middle of this plot. So they do conform to the character of the area, and 

he quite rightly wants to have three or four acres around them. But this 

does not seem a sound reason to down zone tbe rest of the 120 acres. 

That's all. 

MR. CHARLES FRANKEL (317 Phillips Hill Road, New City): Gentlemen, 

I oppose the petition, as do I think most of the people in the room. But 

before I give my reasons for doing so, I want to express my own personal 

sense of gratitude to Mr. Nemeroff for the annual civic occasion he provides 

in New City. I know of no time during the year at which civic spirit is 

higher and the community rises to defend its rights, and I think all of us 

can use the spirit that has developed for better cause. 

MR. MUNDT: Please stick to the matter at hand. 

MR. FRANKEL: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, but I had to express my personal 

sense of gratitude. 

The basic point I did wish to make is that the ordinance that now exists, 

gentlemen, in the County is not as has been alleged, an ordinance that pre

vents growth or that freezes the development of the County. In fact, it 

provides an orderly planned fork road. 

Specifically in one acre zones developments have been put up in the 

immediate area of New City. There is one on Little Tor Road, one of Buena 

Vista Road, one on Burda Avenue, and one on West Clarkstown Road. In all these 

areas houses have been put up on one acre zoning and people have bought the 

houses in perfect compliance with existing regulations. 

The point of all this is not to prevent development, but to allow the 

community add the Township to develop in a reasonable and a controlled pace 

so that we can keep up with all the public facilities that we need. 

The petitioner has now got land which no one is preventing him from 

developing. The law provides for the development of that land on one acre 

zoning areas. There is no reason that T can see for changing this. If it is 

changed, I think we shall all look hack 30 years from now and sav to ourselves 

that we failed in ourduty to ourselves and our children. 

The ultimate test we have to ask ourselves is: what is this area going 

to look like 30 years from now? It will certainly have more people; it will 

certainly he bigger. But will it look like something rut together in a bad 

dream, or will it look like something put together bv people who have some 

control over their destiny? I think people would prefer to keep some control 

over our destiny ratherthan to sell it out to r-me individual who wishes to 
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develop oui^kly, at a ouick rrofii-, leaving us to pick up the pieces. 

^P. POPFIPT McEIPOY (??o South Mountain Road, New City): T am a new member 

of the community, sc to speak. T .just moved in last June. Specifically, I do not 

have any fact:: or fie-ures to quote. But I would like to say I moved from a com

munity named Pamsey, New Jersey. This was a small, really undeveloped community 

six years ago when T moved in. What has happened in the past years — and these 

are general statements; T don't have any facts and figures, I am sorry — is 

that our taxes went up T would say roughly two-and-a-half times what they were 

when we moved in. This resulted from enormous growth in population in the com

munity. 

About three years ago a public referendum went up for light industry zoning 

in the community. The community voted against it. The community was subsequently 

up zoned. The reason for all this was taxes, pure and simple. 

This is my statement, and I thank you. 

MR. RICHARD MAY, JR. (480 Little Tor Road, New City): Mr. Supervisor, 

I have a written statement. If the members of the Town Board would like copies, 

I would be happy to give it to them. 

The problem of growth in Clarkstown is becoming increasingly complex and 

places a heavy burden of responsibility on our Town Board. Zoning decisions are 

becoming increasingly difficult, as you are constantly subject to pressures from 

many sides: from property owners who want to sell their property; from property 

owners who want to stop further increases in taxes; from merchants, newspapers 

and public utilities who have invested heavily in the Town's growth; aikd, finally, 

from home builders and land speculators. 

As the Town grows, the problem of providing adequate public services be

comes greater in terms of schools, roads, fire and police protection, and more 

recently the problem of sewage disposal. 

I am speaking tonight not only as an affected property owners, but also as 

a professional city planner currently engaged in assisting 25 to 50 communities 

in the metropolitan area in keeping with their planning and zoning problems which 

are in many cases very similar to ours in Clarkstown. 

Of the many communities confronted with rapid growth, those whoare dealing 

with it most effectively are making all their decisions within the contention of 

a coordinated development policy, or a master plan. Moreover, the most successful 

communities are those which stand firmly on their development policies and their 

^oning. They are the ones which people and industries want to move to, and they 

are the ones the builders and speculators have learned to respect. Many communities 

have learned that by having a strong zoning policy, they can have their cake and 

eat it, too. You don't find them breaking down their one, two and even four acre 

residential districts because they have succeeded in attracting an IBM, General 

Foods, or Union Carbide office, factory or laboratory. In fact they wouldn't 

have been able to attract these plants if they had not guaranteed to maintain 

their general community character, because no large corporation will invest money 

in a community which is likely to deteriorate. 

It is impossible, without some over-all policy or plan, to reach valid de-
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cisions as to whether or not rezonincr involvi^r a reduction in resident! a] lot 

size should be granted in the case of Squadron A, on Carnsmuir Lane, on Smith 

Road in Nanuet, or the Dells. Such Questions as whether New City needs, or 

perhaps even car survive 2,000 more feet of commercial zoninp* on Route 304, 

or whether 100 more acres of fl-2 are needed in Nanuet, or what consequences of 

550 acres in LO at The Dells will be, can only be answered within the con

tention of an over-all Town plan. 

Speaking as a professional city planner, I can tell you frankly that 

there are qualified planners who can provide valid reasons for justifying any 

the petitions now before you, and there are equally qualified planners who 

can give you compelling reasons why they should not be granted. Growth 

groups would be advising you ir. terms of their personal opinion and their 

interpretation of the Town's needs. The fact is that no one can properly 

advise you except within the context of an over-all plan and policy which is 

an expression of what the people of Clarkstown have decided what they want 

after a great deal of thought and discussion. 

Such an expression of poliev was developed almost five years ago in 

Clarkstown. Basically, I believe that most people feel these policies are 

still sound. However, I also believe that now the time has come to review 

these basic policies and the present zoning ordinance in which they are ex

pressed. Such a review cannot be successful if it is done piecemeal by 

considering individual petitions as you are tonight. It must be compre

hensive. Fortunately, the Town now has a new body of information to enable 

it to deal with this task in the studies made by the County Planning Board 

at a cost of $160,000 over the past two years, which will be complete within 

a few months. 

I therefore urge you to make no further revisions to the Zoning Or

dinance — for the Dells or any other applicants, until you have developed 

with the aid of a broadly representative citizens group which can review the 

County Planning Board staff's proposals, a new zoning ordinance, or at least 

a review of the present Ordinance based upon a new master plan for the orderly 

growth of the Township. 

T believe that if you do not immediately pursue such a policy, and 

decide on the other hand to grant any of the major zoning amendments now 

before you, that all zoning will go by default in the Town, since these 

petitions will undoubtedly he followed by a flood of new petitions which 

you will have no longer any basis to deny, and Clarkstown may very well have 

lost its last change to determine its own destiny. 

MR. WALTER L. FLEISHER (443 Buena Vista Road, New City): I oppose 

the petition in general, but I want to talk on one particular point so as 

not to be repetitive of what has been said by other people. It particularly 

concerns LO zoning and the requirements of public facilities that must be 

provided to take care of this tyre of construction. 

In particular, a problem which is very serious in New City at the 

present time, and which is goinft to become more serious in the future, is 

the matter of seware. m^r« i r rr^^rf1" r^ "ourtv or township sewage system. 



There has been one under consideration for a lon^ period of time. It has never 

been resolved as yet; and a laboratory office area presents a particular problem, 

in that it produces sewae-e problems which you don't o-et even in fairly crowded 

residential areas. It produces types of waste which cannot be handled effectively 

by septic systems; it produces a concentration of them that normally cannot be 

handled in this way, particularly with Rockland County's hard pan lying over a 

solid rock base, which does not provide good drainage. 

I oppose the idea of the original 10 rezoning on this basis, that the 

facilities were not available, and certainly to add to it now another 152 acres 

is only going to compound the problem. 

The main drainage in this area is part of the Hackensack ^iver, which is 

a public water supply system, and all water, even effluent from an efficient 

sewage plant, is not suitable to be drained into a public water supply. The 

other answer is that the sewa e must go a long way down the Hackensack Valley 

until it can find a spot where it can be discharged into the Hudson Fiver. 

This is a problem that nobody has answered. There has been talk of private 

sewage plants, but nobody has said what is going to harpen to the effluent from 

this which cannot go into the river which runs through The Dells, or even the 

problem of pollution of storm water from industrial buildings, which often, while 

not considered sewage, presents a pollution problem to the drinking water supply. 

MR. CHARLES ELITCH (310 South Mountain Road, New City): On behalf of Lake 

Lucille property owners, I want to oppose this motion here this evening. I don't 

have any high sounding or technical or official objections, except we don't like 

it. 

We have a little communitv here. You did not put it on the map there, 

Mr. Nemeroff. 

MR. NEMEROFF: It does not belong there. 

MR. ELITCH: Right near the Schnepf line, Ranni's property, that's where 

Lake Lucille begins, Zukor Road, South Mountain Road. You can see we are right 

on the Pan. I don't know just to what extent we will be affected, but we have a 

very quiet, restful community there. It is run by cooperative effort. 

We objected previously when the hearings were one, and I just want to in

ject this thought with you gentlemen just as we did with the previous administra

tion: 

We are not in favor of this. Not only do we ask that you reject it, but 

we expect that you will. 

MR. THOMAS I. BPENNAN (329 Worth Main Street, New City): I am against 

this petition. I have had occasion to examine a few past petitions. It was a 

cursory glance. There is one thing that has turned up consistently, and that is 

the amount of money they have always asked because they have to do something. 

In 1955, he said taxes were killing him. He has tosell at piecemeal. 

He can't raise dues on the club, and he can't live like a land baron, and he 

appears like a wounded eagle and he says he is loosing his shirt, and if he 

doesn't get the thing, he will sell it in the fall. 

In 1958 another application was made from the same figure. 
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MP. TRACHTP'BKFG : From wha^ is he ouotinp-? 

MP. NEMEPOFF: He is making statements and I would like to know from 

what petition this appears. 

Mipht T ask that? 

MB. MUNDT: You can ask these questions in yourrebuttal. 

MP. NEMEROFF: Will he be around? 

MR. BRENNAN: I won't go away. 

MR. NEMEROFF: Please stay around. I want to know where. 

MR. MUNDT: Let me make onepoint, though. Let us not hear any state

ments which refer to personalities or touch upon integrity and what have 

you. 

MR. BRENNAN: In 1958 a second petition was made, and there was a 

series of attempts at liquidations, which allegedly fell, and there were 

attempts at the disposal of petitioner's property and results thereof. 

At each particular time, a sum of money was asked approximateing half a 

million dollars. 

The 1955 petition said they needed this approximate money because they 

wanted to put in sewers and roads on their new houses. In 1958, the same 

amount of area was needed for the purpose of puttiner in sewers and roads 

for the new houses. 

Now a different attack has been taken. In 1959 and I960 there was 

no claim of financial hardship, but this time an added gimmick has been 

added, and that has to do with the money that is needed for the development 

of the LD. It is to be said that before this property can be sold, the LO 

monies are needed, and it is reflected in the petition. 

It is the same amount of money that has been asked previously. The 

same general figures have been used. 

Asa condition of sale of LO, the e must be terms by an offerer and 

terms by a buyer, and what the terms are and the conditions of the offer to 

sell by Mr. Nemeroff on his now existing LO land are unknown, and what de

mands have been made are unknown. But there jtjst is a question that he can't 

sell it, that he has to put further improvements in it. The conditions under 

which he wants to sell are not known and the conditions which they are to buy 

are not known, but he said to effectuate the sale, he needs this money. But 

the same amount of money has cropped up; the same general problem has cropped 

up year after year. 

In apprising this petition, there is a question. 

There has been an accumulation of land. Where Mr. Nemeroff has said he 

had trouble, at the last meeting, in the record he said he acquired 20 acres, 

and as his hardship hâ : continued, there has been acquiring of further land. 

I think in so far as we the people of Clarkstown are entitled to it, we 

are entitled to a fair shake. Just because I have three-quarters of an acre 

or half an acre does not deny me the right to say what the sreneral area of 

800 acres should be. 

In so far as this planning is presented, the^e is not one iota for any 
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recreationa] aroa. From herp on hack to the City it is a sea of a carpet of 

houre?. We hav<= to ^xer^ire some control and ŵ> have to use the forces of educa

tion and in^ustrv BVA w*at Fcience has taught us to come forward with a progressive 

and a pood community, and w^en they come ur> with a petition that iust has a 

piece of 800 acres that doos not take into consideration what should be done and 

what must be done on a projected 20, 25, or 30 year basis, then the petition 

should be denied. 

A lot of promises were made to us as citizens around here and it should 

be seen that they are kept. We have proexession, we have youth, and we have 

ideas. So far as a burden, so far as this being a limitation of property, 

Mr. Nay T believe could explain very simply how this can be done under a com

prehensive plan that does not take in the corner of Little Tor Road and Phillips 

Hill Road, but covers the entire acres and is on a county-wide basis. On that 

basis, which is a limited eagle plan, in which the wounded eagle cries, I would 

deny it. 

MR. LESTER TALKINGTON (395 North Little Tor, New City): I want to oppose 

this petition, well, on reneral grounds, the way everybody else does, but I have 

one point I would like to state here. I moved out to North Clarkstown here 

because I like the area. I did not know at the time you had a zone or a plan 

that would keep that area the way I like it. 

Since I have learned ahout this — and T have learned about it thanks 

to the petitioner's attack on the plan — I have come to appreciate this. 

One more thing has occurred here tonight that no one else has mentioned 

clearly, and it is this: 

Previously there have been many implicit attacks on the Zoning Plan of 

Clarkstown. But the petitioner made no public statements, nothing on the 

record before that I know of, in which he attacked the plan for Clarkstown, 

the existing plan, the nature of it and the goals of it. 

Tonight such attacks were made in great detail. The plan was ridiculed; 

it was made to blame for all the shoddy houses that were put up. Of course, 

anybody who lives in one of the housing developments around here will know that 

it is not the Town Plan that is responsible for it and there is nothing to keep 

Mr. Nemeroff's land itself from being sold to some developer who will put up 

shoddy houses there. There is nothintr at all in his so-called plan that will 

do this. But many other things, such as the rapid growth of the Town, have been 

blamed on the Plan. 

The Plan is not something that is responsible for this. We know this. 

The highways, the Thruways, are responsible for the rapid growth. There is a need 

for the Plan. The Plan has provided a pretty orderly planned use of the land. 

This is under attack here tonight. 

Previously, it was implicit in the petitions that it would destroy the 

Plan. Tonight, what we have here, actually, is not only an explicit attack 

on the Plan as such, bit also a statement, an explicit statement, that Clarks

town, if it does not want to pay for the cost of developing the LO zone, should 

give up its planning, should riveu- its zoninsr, inorder to pay for this. I don't 

think Clarkstown should have to pa- frr :t *:*her way. 
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MP. MAC DONALD PF^PTG: (South Mountain Poad, New Citv>: T would like 

to ask ouertions of Mr. Ward. 

MP. TR^CTTENBE^G: Ma- we cross examine Mr. Ward? 

MR. MUNDT: In your rebuttal. 

MP. DEMING: T would like to submit a brief in opposition to this 

petition to the Board. 

I should like to submit a group of petitions that fall into two 

categories: first, a petition of owners of peripheral land, the signatures 

of those whose perimeters are in excess of the statutory reuirement of 20 

percent. Thus in zoning the statutory requirement, itwould t ke a voteof 

four members of the Boaid to approve the change. 

Second, a series of petitions reouesting me and Mr. David Sigerson to 

represent them in opposing this petition. I believe there are 140 names 

there. 

If I might open my remarks by asking a few questions of Mr. Ward, I would 

appreciate it. 

J A M E S H. W A R D Appeared as a witness and testified as follows: 

EXAMINATION BY ME. DEMING: 

Q I understand at the last hearing you expressed opposition — 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: Can Mr. Ward come up to the witness chair? 

MR. DEMING: I would like to ask ay questions. 

MR. FESTA: It is only a simple request. 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. Ward, would you come forward? 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: Mr. Mundt, I thought we were going to keep this 

on the basis where there are no personal remarks. 

MR. MUNDT: There will be no personal remarks from this audience. 

BY MR. DEMING: 

Q As I understand the record of the last yearns hearing you expressed 

your professional opinion in opposition to down zoning about 120 acres of 

the petitioner's land from one acre to a third acre. Is that right? 

A That's true. 

Q This year he is requesting that the same 120 acres be down zoned 

from one acre to half acref R.22. Have you an opinion as to that? 

A I can't comment on the new petition, Mr. Deming, because that has 

not been referred to us. I can speak only in terms of our recommendations 

of last year. 

Q To those you adhere? 

A Either in specific or in general terms, or in the principles that 

underlay the recommendations. 

Q You adhere to your recommendations of last year? 

A I do. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: I object to that, Mr. Mundt, because Mr. Ward says 

he is not familiar with the new petition. Tfete matter of last year has been 

closed. 
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MP. PF^I^n: T must resoectfully expresssome rep-ret that the Planning Director 

has not had the opportunity to studv the new petition. Under the circumstances, 

I have onlv a few more ouestions. 

Q Mr. Ward, do I understand that your office is conducting a series of studies 

with respect to the Town of Clarkstown? 

A That is true, yes. 

Q How long have these studies been going on? 

A Specifically, in terms of the Urban Planning Assistance Program, which is 

the Joint Federal-State-County Program, just about two years, since the middle of 

March of 1957. Other studies began earlier and willgo on longer. 

0 If I recall the record correctly of last year's hearing, you said at that 

time — on June 6, 1959, I think — that it would take perhaps somewhat more than 

a year to complete those studies. Is my memory correct? 

A I think our schedule is better now. We will probably finish in the middle 

of the summer. We are fitting now for July 1st, or the latest, August 1st. 

Q Do those studies include recommendations as to comprehensive plans for 

the Town of Clarkstown? 

A They do. 

MP. DEMING: Those are all the questions I have. 

MR. TFACHTENBERG: May I ask a few questions? 

MR. MUNDT: You will ask Questions on rebuttal. 

MP. TPACHTENBERG: This is pertinent. 

MR. MUNDT: When you answer in rebuttal, you will be allowed to query 

Mr. Ward or anyoone else you careto. 

MR. FESTA: We havenit objected to hiii asking questions to anyone. You said 

we shouldn*t ask any questions. The other side is asking questions. They should 

just make statements. Now we have a procedure here where he has been asking ques

tions. I feel right now it is pertinent for us to also ask him questions. 

MP. FREUND: What is fair for one is fair for another. 

MR. MUNDT: As I stated before, both sides will have an opportunity. 

MR. FROHLING: Is this the only gentleman you intend to auestion? 

MP. DEMING: That is right. I would like, however, to make remarks myself, 

if I say. 

MR. WELCHMAN: You will have that opportunity, but I think it is only fair 

that they have the privilege of questioning Mr. Ward. 

MP. DEMING: May I step down, then? 

MR. MUNDT: For the moment. 

Do you care to ask Mr. Ward some questions? 

EXAMINATION BY MP. TPACHTENBERG: 

Q l#r. Ward, do I understand you to say that you will have a comprehensive 

plan for the Town of Clarkstown next summer? 

A Yes. We will hae the technical work finished next summer, Mr. Trachtenberg. 

Q When will the completed planbe ready? 

A I would think within two months after that, which will he the preparation 

of the written reports. 
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(o When will the completed plan K« re«dy? 

A T would think within two -rontns after that, which will be the prepera-

tion of the written r^iorts. 

Q Can you Five us a date? 

A Yes. T said August 1st for thecomnletion of the technical work. 

October 1st for thecompletion of the reports. 

Q Mr. Ward, isn't this the same kind of a statement that you made just 

about a year ago, in speaking tc a group of people, when you stated there was 

a master plan under study and that you helped to have this comprehensive blue

print ready in the fall , this statement being made mor*> particularly on 

March 18, 1959? 

A I don't recal1 what I said then, Mr. Trachtenbei g, but I remember my 

June remarks, which are exactly the same ones I make today. 

Q Let me see if I can refresh your recollection. I quote from a copy 

of the Journal-News of March 19, 1959* during the time that the petition of 

The Dells was also pending, and during the time when the petition of The Dells 

was before the Planning Board of the Town of Clarkstown for study, and I quote: 

"County Planning Director James Ward, predicting that a Master Zoning Plan 

for Clarkstown would be completed by the fall, indicated to Clarkstown Democrats 

last night in New City that he hoped this comprehensive blueprint for growth would 

beready in time to help shape the character of Clarkstown which he characterizes 

as being as unpredictable as an adolescent child.I,w 

Do you remember that statement made before that group? 

A I think there are t.o words left out of there. 

Q Do you remember the statement generally? 

A In the fall of I960, not the fall of 1959. 

MR. NEHEROFF: You got your dates mixed. 

Q Is the report in the article incorrect? Are you now telling us that 

it is incorrectly reported? 

A Yes, I do. I never would have said 1959. That's ridiculous. 

MR. WEICHMAN: I think you mentioned September of that particular hearing. 

Q I am just reporting what is quoted here, where it states that the 

plan would be completed by the fall. There is no date stated, but by the fall. 

Do you remember that statement. 

A No, I don't. But if T did, T would have said the fall of I960, not 

the fall of 1959. 

Q Did you read the article in the newspaper the day following your 

making the statement? 

A I might well have. I don't remember. 

Q Did you make any correction in the newspaper? 

A I don't remember the article. 

Q Did you ask that a correction be made? 

A As I say, I don't remember the article. 

Q You don't remember the article? 

A No, I don't. 
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0 Will vou look at it, Mr. Ward, and see if you can recall it now? 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. Trachtenberr, will you come to your point, plea-e? 

W-:. TPACHTF,N"EPG: I am makinr the point now. T am making- this just for the 

record. 

MR. WARD: I am sorry Mr. Trachtenberp. I am amused more than annoyed by it, 

though. 

MR. TPACH'"ENBERG: I would like to have this as part of the record. I am 

offering this as part of the record. 

(Newspaper clipping of the Journal-News, March 19*, 1959, was received as 

part of the record.) 

MP. E. McDONALD: According to parliamentary rules, this man is out of order. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: I haven't interrupted anybody. 

MR. MUNDT: The Board does no5 think he is out of order. 

MR. McDONALD: You made a statement before, Mr. Chairman, at the start of 

the meeting that the petitioner and his attorney will have the floor and then 

Mr. Ward would get up and say something, and the floor would be turned over to 

the opposition. Why change the rules? 

MR. MUNDT: Because it is the feeling of this Board, after having established 

with Mr. Deming that this was the only man he was going to question, that the 

petitioner should also question him. 

MR. McDONALD: I didn't hear that. 

MR. MUNDT: That was established. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: May I proceed? 

MR. MUNDT: Yes. 

BY MR. TRACHTENBERG: 

Q Do you recall a meeting of the Board of Supervisors held on April 15, 1959, 

at which time Supervisor Edwin E. Wallace spoke with you about a master plan for 

the County, and Mr. Wallace said he wanted to see the final determination on zoning 

and planning left with the townships; do you recall that? 

A Vaguely. 

Q Do you remember the statement made by Mr. Wallace wherein he said he was 

surprised to see Mr. Ward quoted in the newspaper* as referring to a County Master 

Plan? 

A Yes, I do remember that. 

Q And that Mr. Ward said he was glad the matter came up and said he wanted 

to clear up any apparent misunderstanding? Do you recall that? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And that you said the County do**s not intend to dictate zoning and planning 

within the townships; do you recall that/ 

A True. 

Q An<̂  that there was no County Comprehensive Master Plan under study at the 

time? 

A I said a bit more, too. 

Q What else did you say at the time? 

A I said we had no Comprehensive County Plan just as such. I said this 

again last June, at ^he previous h°arir^*: th?st what we were preparing was a group 



of coordinated comprehê s-> ve plan? on r*& basis of the f̂ .ve towns, coordinated 

so that thev would work ton-ether as a comprehensive plan if all five towns 

should agree, but coordinated in such a way that if one town should not want to 

accept the planning, it would not destroy the remaining four-fifths. 

0 What is this plan? For zoning, for sewers, for water, or for what? 

A You are asking me to explain the Comprehensive Plan? What it attempts 

to do? 

Q I am asking you what this plan was for, what it was directed to. 

A Basically it is a topographic nap. Built on the topographic map it is 

a drainage study, it is a highway plan, a recreation plan. Both of these are 

built on such things as land use studies, land capacity studies, population 

projections, and this vast array of other things, other basic studies that 

we have been carrying on. 

Q Was it directed toward zoning? 

A It will include zoning as well. It will include subdivision regulations. 

Q But the Plan you were working on at the time was primarily with regard 

to water and drainage? 

A No 

Q It was not? 

A No. I think there is some misunderstanding about this. 

Q Is that also a misunderstanding? 

A We were working on a dozen things at the same time. 

Q I am talking about this plan that you are talking about. That wouldn't 

be a dozen things. 

A Yes, itwould. 

Q Are you going to have by the fall of this year a ̂ oning plan? 

A Probably, because the zoning map would be the last thing we would do. 

Q You say probably. Are you going to have a zoning plan this fall, yes 

or no? 

A Lord only knows, Mr. Trachtenberg. It depends on my keeping my 

staff — 

Q That's enouch*. 

A We are aiming for it. Let's say that. 

Q You are aiming for it? 

A That's right. 

Q You can't predict when it will be ready? 

A I wouldn't dare predict it. 

Q You wouldn't dare? 

A No. 

MR. TRACHTENBERG: That is all. 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. Deminpr still has the floor. 

MR. DEMING: I have no further questions of Mr. Ward. 

(Witness excused.) 

MP. DEMING: I would like to call the Board's attention, however, in 

view of the questions by Mr. Trachtenberg, to page 81 of the record of the 

hearing last year, ir which Mr. Ward was asked W ^ ^ P - he ^ould p-ive the outside 
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time limit on creation of these r]ans that are under discussion and to which he 

replied, "As of the dat* of June 6, 1959, T would think the outside time limit would 

he something like a year." T think it is only fair to *rr. Ward. That's a year, of 

course, from June 6, 195°. It is perfectly cor si stent with what he says today. 

MR. TPACHTFWBKPG: In other words, June 6, 1960? 

MP. DEMTNG: Nowif I may proceed with my presentation. 

I think that those who have had the opportunity of inspecting the petition— 

and it seemr to he a very limited number, with the exception of the Board itself — 

would he impressed by the fact, as indicated bv the wording of the petition itself, 

that this petitioner does not deny, but rather asserts, that further developmental 

housing on his property would be a detriment to this Town. 

I just would like to surest that if that is not the case, it is a little 

surprising that the words "sterilizing this property against the home building" are 

used in connectior with the LO develot>ment, and that the petition contends that these 

suggestions by the petitioner will r^ult in creating a large benefit to the Clarkstown 

taxpayers by sterilizing this 560 acres. He also describes it as a net g in to the 

Town of about 485 homes, with a ^onsequert relief fcr additional school facilities, 

services, and so forth, which would naturally follow the building of those homes. 

Of course, you have noted as I was talking that he does go on and try to 

obscure the impact of this submission with what, without disrespect, I should like 

to call a numbers game. You have h^ard Mr. Trachtenberg use that game tonight. He 

stood up here and talked about 760 acres and how now we are only asking for 120 acres. 

I think the Board should consider a few facts in evaluating whether it is a gain or 

whether it is a loss. 

First, of course, as everyone knows, there was a LO section of the petitioner's 

property created last year. That exists now, 235 acres, if I understand correctly. 

Of course, the petitioner cannot generously sterilize that any more. That is LO. 

About 90 acres, if I remember, he says he is going to leave, or he suggests be left 

in one acre zoning. Obviously there is no gain or loss. There is no change. 

But the most interesting thing to me, in regard to this numbers game, appears 

on page 8 of the petition. Referring to Parcel No. 2, which is described on page 7 

as comprising 330 acres and which is requested to be placed in LO, that is, a new 

request for LO or part of it, on page 8 it says that most of said land lends itself 

to such construction, referring to golf courses, and no other use, because it is low 

land containing an overflowing stream. If housing were to be built on such land, it 

would create great difficulties as to drainage and roads. That is from the sworn 

petition of the petitioner. 

It has been pointed out verv eloquently tonight that this plan of the petitioner 

is not a comprehensive plan, because the only proper use of the term "comprehensive 

plan" is comprehensive in termsof the whole Town, and the law itself, the Town law 

itself, sets forth the considerations which go into the determination of a compre

hensive plan. 

Among those considerations, and very important to us here in this Town today, 

is consideration of adequacy of schools. Mr. Trachtenberg, quite appropriately, 

read from the report of Dean Seifried, Fresi^ent of the Board of Education of this 

school district. I would ,iust like to re*d 0-«ot-er paragraph from that report, the 
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concludirr- one. 

Tt says: "The ôard of Education, in view of these facts, advocates 

no zoning chancres, either now or in the forseeable future, that might further 

over-tax school facilities." T think that makes prettv clear where the Board of 

Education stands. 

A question has been raised as to the refusals, the legal refusals, of 

this sort of thinp, and this question was raised in a case that was decided 

yesterday by the Supreme Court of New York, in Goshen. I spoke on the telephone 

today, after it appeared in the paper, to the secretary of the <iudge and got a 

few quotes which I think will interest this party and this Board. That was a 

case in which an application for placing land in Tl.22 was denied on the ground 

of inadequacy of school facilities in the foreseeable future, or for a period 

stated. The Court said: "The petitioner does not, however, seriously contro

vert the impending: serious inadequacy of the school facilities in the territory," 

which is the North Widdletown territory. "It is, however, particularly contended 

by the petitioner that the Board had no authority to take into consideration the 

inadequacy of school facilities in connection with its determination. With this 

contention the Court does not agree." 

It says: "Now incidental to the evils of overcrowding and undue con

centration on population are generally the lack of proper school facilities. 

The extent of future needs on account of such facilities and plans therefore 

are matters relative to and are of important consideration in connection with 

zoning. Town Law Sec. 263 expressly mentions facilitation and adequate pro

vision for sdhool requirement as one of the purroses of screening regulations. 

"Certainly the situation would become more urgent in the event zoning 

requirements were eased to increase the population density in the school 

districts, and the action of the Town Board here is nothing more than an 

attempt to help stab&ize the problems created by the influx of new home 

owners to a point where a school district can cope with them." 

Those are just a few excerpts from that excellent opinion, supporting 

the excellent action of the Board. 

The next important point, it seems to me, is this question of taxes. 

This, if I understand it, is the entire apreal which the petitioner is 

trying to make. Let it be clearly understood that neither T nor the people 

for whom I speak are in favor of high taxes for ourselves or for the Town. 

But our position and our contention, and our earnest contention, is that the 

granting of this F.22 application would enourmously increase and not decrease 

the taxes. And I am not leaving out of account the LO when I say that. 

This same report by the School Board sets forth and points out some 

sample figures taken from, a typical housing development in this area that 

there are somewhat more than two children typically per house and goes into 

the cost of education of esc* child, the percentage which is raid bv local 

taxation, and it leaves for each house of the particular sample taken a net 

deficit of $569, °T something in that area. The Board can refer to the 

exact figures. 
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At tMs point we com** to what T think and suggest is the most important point 

cf all. It hr?s b^en referred t~ hy "ever?! speakers. We mirht rail it losing control 

cf 2Dn̂ nfr. 

This p̂ t-'tiorer is trying to ̂ alk in terms of what he says ;s averaging be

tween 120 acres for residence and Ŝ O acres for LO. But this leaves out of account 

the fact that even with that 120 acres, which are at the very outskirts of this Town 

and beyond an area ©f at least half a Tfiile, and a further surrounding area of one 

acre zoning, this will ve the end of zoniner in Clarkstown, T think, because as to 

the surrounding area — T think the petition itself describes it as 3,^00 acres 

surrounding one acre 7one — there would be no valid, no arbitrary reason why anyone 

else couldn't sret the same. 

If that happens, it is the end of the ore acre. Tf that happens, we are not 

talking about 3f600 more houses. Tf my arithmetic is correct, that would be an 

additional school tax alone of about SI,800.00. To make up that tax, it would take 

about as much or a little more than the entire existing assessed value of Clarkstown. 

T oppose this petition. 

MR. MUNDT: Are there any others who wish to be heard in opposition to this 

petition? 

MISS ANN POOR (South Mountain Road, New City^: T would like to ask a question, 

which is this: I notice that not so long back, Mr. Mundt, you ruled against any 

personal questions being asked at this meeting. But considering the fact that this 

petitioner is one individual and that the people here are speaking in opposition to 

his petition, as T am, it seems to me that T would like to ask Mr. Nemeroff one or two 

questions, which I feel he should, in all honesty, answer at this meeting. 

MR. TRACHTFNBERG: Mr. Mundt, I made that offer before, if you will recall. 

MR. MUNDT: Unless Mr. Nemeroff has any objection and the Board has any ob

jection, we will allow these questions. 

MR. NEMEROFF: T would like to know the area she is going to ask these 

question. 

MR. MUNDT: As I said before, I think the Board feels that there will be no 

questions with character aspersions. T think this is only fair. There isn't anyone 

in the room that would like to have that type of question asked of him, and we will 

not allow it of the petitioner. 

MISS POOR: I have one question of fact which I would like to ask the petitione 

I think it is not of any private nature whatsoever. 

MR. NEMEROFF: Do you want to whisper it to me first? 

MISS POOR: No, T don't. 

MR. NEMEROFF: Ask it. I will answer it. 

MISS POOR: How long have you lived in tie County? 

MR. NEMEROFF: Eleven years. That's one question. 

MISS POOR: This is all one question. 

You have a house on little Tor ̂ oad, don't you? 

m. NEMEROFF: Yes. 

MISS POOR: Is this house for sale, and why? 

MR. NEMEROFF: May I tell you? 



MTSC POOP: Yes, T would like to know why your house is for sale. 

MP. NEMF^CFF: Nay T tell you? 

MISS POO^: Yes. 

MP. N^M*POPV: Presently there is rip-ht in New City now a plan for ̂ 0 

additional hotel and ronfer^rce rooms to he built in the PC area adjacent to 

the club. On ton of those rooms is a plan for a seven-room apartment for my

self. The reason is because Mrs. Nemeroff and myself are getting a little 

tired of running a house. Tt is far away from the club. It even provides an 

elevator so we don't have to walk the three flights of steps. 

I might go further. Two of my children are married. One child is in 

private school and the other child is going to private school next year. 

MISS POOP: Why does your child not go to the public school in this 

County? 

MR. MUNDT: Miss Poor. 

MISS POOP: I retract that. 

I feet the other is a perfectly good question. I am just a citizen of 

the County. I don't know Mr. Nemeroffs private plans. 

MR. NEMPPOFF: You are getting there, though. 

What else? 

MISS POOR: I assume when he puts his house up for sale and I see it 

when I just pass down the road, T get the inference he does not want to live here 

any more• 

MR. NEMEROFF: T am going to build a seven-room apartment, Mrs. Poor. 

MR. MUNDT: Miss Poor, the facts which this Board has to ascertain 

concern this petition. T don't think we can act intelligently unless we bring 

out all the facts pertaining to the petition itself. I think I speak for the 

Board in saying that questions relating to an individual's life should not be 

asked. 

MISS POOR: To his property, though. 

MR. MUNDT: If it relates to the Dells' petition, no one will stop you 

on that• 

MISS POOR: I thought this property is part of the property in question. 

MR. WELCHMAN: Not his personal matter. Not his home. His home isn't 

included in this. 

MR. NEMEROFF: Mipjit I say this? 

MISS POOR: I don't need any reassurance from you. 

MR. NEMEROFF: I was going to suggest you meet me after the meeting in 

a public place. I would be happy to R-ive you the answer to your Questions, to 

any questions you want to know. 

MISS POOR: T don't want to talk to you privately. 

MP. VINCENT FAGEL (65 Philli-s Hill Poad, New City): 

I live in a one acre zone. Tt is on Phillips Hill Road in between 

New City and where Mr. Nemeroff wants to down zone the one-half acre. I guess 

I don't like people driving past my house into one-half acre unless T am one-

half acre or a third or an aprtment house. T think it would be unfair for 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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the Board t^ r^1?^ ^r. MO^T-O-- v,^^ ^r*^** ^ H voop m e or>e acr^. Tf be ^O^R t^at, 

^e will ^a^e +~o l̂ nld Q "H-niHn-o ov»r n?v hmj^e to p^t +*o M s la^d. Tt IF sort of over 

my dead moû **, or something. T am asrairs* t̂ e re^^ior. 

MP. NFMEROT^: What- was t*at? 

MP. FAGFT : Can T just n*A one thing? *r. Nemeroff asked me what T wanted to 

say and T said over my dead mouse. T was thinking of the picture called "The Mouse 

that Roared". T was tMnkin«- of ĥ î e- 8 little mouse that roared with my little acre 

and these three hundred other acres fiirhtinp me. 

MP. MUNDT: T know it is getting late and tempers are netting frayed, possibly, 

but let's let each witness make his statement without any interruptions. 

MP. WIT-UAH KTEP^AN: (4* Phillips Hill Road, Hew City): T was .just wondering 

when this LO Situation would stop developing. When the application was made a year 

or a year and a half BP-O, it was for X number of acres. Recently Mr. Nemeroff has 

purchased more land in A-l , the Mgher zoning, and now he comes in on this map — 

and not like Take Lucille, mine is on the map. He wants to bring that down to LO. 

You can't fight City Hall, T realize that. But T was wondering, with the Smith 

Farm coming in, when they are going to ask for LO. Myself and several neighbors dis

cussed this over the weekend, and between us, on both sides of Phillips Hill Road we 

have 50 acres, and what will the Board say when we come in and ask for 1*0? T don't 

see how we can be turned down when we have a common line with LO on the other side. 

If we get LO, it is froinp- to fo down Buckley and the first thing you know you 

will have LO all the way over the place and you will have down zoning all over the 

place. It does not make any difference to me, because T fortunately can pack up 

and*m®me .out of the County tomorrow. But I don't want to do that. T have a home. 

I have A-l zoning and I want to stay that way. If I have to, I will sell out and go 

as far as I want. I can pet out, but I hate to see that happen in a nice community 

like this. 

MP. MUNDT: Is there anyone else who cares to be heard in opposition to this 

petition? 

MR. HAROLD LASKEY (450 South Mountain Road, New City): My statement is a very 

short one. I am in opposition to this petition. T .just want to make the one sug

gestion, and T am ouite sure the Town Board will be acting on it without my suggestion, 

since there have been a number of references to the County Planning Board, the Town 

Planning Board. 

I am merely assuming that this retition, which apparently has not been sub

mitted or referred to the Town Zoning Planning Board or through it to the County 

Planning Board for an opinion, will be so directed. That is all. I merely want to 

go on the record in opposition to the petition. I assume that the usual procedure 

will be followed in having the Town Board ret its opinions and comments from the 

Planning Board, your own Town Planning Board and your Countv Planning Board, which 

all of us also support as taxpayers. 

MR. MUNDT: Do T see any oth<---r hands ^aised in opposition to thi spetition? 

If not, are there any here who would like their names and addresses listed as 

opposed to this petition? 

MR. FAGEL: I am sure everyone would like to get their names down. If they 



•t, thev will ?sv, "V/hy werp^'t von there to make your objection?" 

MP. MUNDT: The Board h*s ^eci^ed to pass this pad around as "opposed", 

this will he entered in the record, 

MP. TPAOHTENPFRO: What about "for"? 

MP. FAGEI: Can you pass half a dozen pads? Tt will save a little titee. 

MP. NKMFPOFF: Many people, if they were for, didn't want to pet up. 

MP. MTTNDT: Tf anyone came in since. 

MP. DAHTAMT: T don't Relieve you asked before for the peorle who wanted 

sign for. 

MR. TRACHTEWREPG: There is no objection if you do it both ways. 

MP. MUNDT: Let me ask this question, please. 

Is there anyone in this room who did not five his name and address before 

being for this petition? 

(Hands raised.) 

MB. MUNDT: Apparently there are half a dozen individuals. 

MP. TRACHTkNBEFG: Why can't you do the same thing for both of them? 

MP. MUNDT: All right. 

(Those who signed as being For the Petition were as follows): 

Jack Weiss, John Drive, New City. 

Ralph A. Leonard (handwriting illegible), New City. 

Harold DeGaris, New City. 

Mrs. Edward Erickson, 3& Germonds Road, New City. 

Stanley D. Russell, Valley Road, Valley Cottage. 

(End of list.) 

(Those who signed as being Against the Petition were as follows): 

Jeanne Bisantz, 401 Little Tor Road North, New City 

Viola Roberts, 482 Little Tor Road North, New City 

Elizabeth B. McSweeny, Lake Lucille, New City. 

Thomas I. Brennan, 329 North Main St., New City 

Vincent L. Burns, 14 Mandon Terrace, New City. 

Abraham Rose, 4 Beverly Place, New City 

Harold Laskey, 430 South Mountain Road, New City 

Louise R. Laskey, 430 South Mountain Road, New City 

R. W. Feller, 416 South Mountain Road, New City 

Peter L. Feller, 416 South Mountain Road, New City 

Robert Geist, 5 Deerfoot Lane, New City 

Herbert Bard, Mark Lane, New City 

Louis Spino, 40 Woodside Drive, New City 

Angelo Richtman, 49 Mark Lane, New City 

Stuart Mitchell, 41 Woodside Drive, New City 

Roberta Mitchell, 41 Woodside Drive, New City 

Victoria Carlo, Barry Lane, Bardonia, New York. 

Mary Eule, Bardonia, New York 

Sara Pellis, Barry Lane, Bardonia, New York. 

E. McDonough, Shady Prook Tar.e, New City. 
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T. Mauro, South Ni0,jr>4-q-;„ conri New City 

Judith De~in^, ^out* fountain Po^d, New City 

Richard May, Jr., 4»o M.i-tle Tor Po^d, New City 

Eatherire B. Deninr, 631 South fountain Poad, New City 

Alma B. Crosby, South Mountain Poad, New City. 

Jane M. Hei^, Oermonds Poad, West Nyack 

Poyal H. Heid, Germonds Poad, West Nyaek. 

Irene Coletta, Zukor Poad, New City 

Miriam Knipht, 4^3 South Mountain Road, New City 

Harry Knipht, 44.3 South Mountain Poad, New City 

Barbara Mgsterr, 269 Route 304, New City 

John Masters, 269 Route 304, New City 

Elizabeth C. Burchard, 55^ South Mountain Road, New City 

Charles Blitch, 310 South Mountain Road, New City 

Paul Miner, 5 little Tor Poad, New City 

R. E. Bye, 109 West Clarkstown Poad, New City 

Ulelia Bye, 109 West Clarkstown Poad, New City. 

M. D. Harkavy, 445 Buena Vista Poad, New City. 

Theonflore B. Johnson, VanHouten Fields, West Nyack. 

H. Joris Posse, 431 Buena Vista Road, New City. 

Sidney L. Horowitz, 599 South Mountain Road, New City 

Richard McCracken, 501 South Mountain Road, New City 

James Larkas, Lake Lucille, New City 

George W. Brownsell (No address p-iven). 

Elizabeth Kiernan, 48 Phillips Hill Road, New City. 

Mr. ft Mrs. C. T. Cowles, 3*1 North Main St., New City 

Alan H. Anderson, South Mountain Roa~, New City. 

Rudolf A. M. Bergmann, South Mountain Road, New City 

Armon Glenn, South Mountain Road, New City 

Scott Romer, Route 59A, West Nyack 

Olga W. Kenkel, 211 Route 59A, West Y(yac}r 

Mr. ft Mrs. E. J. Tobir, 396 little Tor ^oad, New City 

John Starr, 1 % Little Tor Ro^d, New City 

Betsey Miller, 39 Old Phillies Hill *>o*d, New City 

Helen Ritzer, 4^ Old Phillins Hill Poad, New Ci^y 

Roberta Ballantine, 6*o South Mountain Poad, New City 

Henry J. Miller, 39 Old PMllips Hill ^oa<*, New Ci^r 

Irvine Pitzer, 49 Old P a m i r s Hill Rô .d, New Ci*-y 

Mar,iorie Si person, 5*?0 Scut* Mountain Poad, New City 

Humbert A. Cincotti, 32 South Mountain ^oad, New City 

Herman Rosse, 431 Buena Vista Poad, New City 

S. Helena Posse, 433 Bu**na Vista ^oad, New City 

Terence Anderson, 160 cout* Mountain Poad, New City 
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T>8vH V, c'-ip-or.r.̂-̂  ̂  z,nr\ coljth M^ur^ai^ Prqd, N«»w Ĉ t̂ r 

**ac Dur^sailrai (il]ppible\ ^6^ coui"h Mountain Read, New City 

Lucille C^ncotti, 325 Phil! ins "ill ^oad, *?ew Ci*y 

Aran ^ F R O ^ , ^4 Marcia I?»ne, New Ci *-v 

Nancv ^inrl^r, 1* cco+'t ^rivp, New City 

Sam Mangel, Centenary, New City 

Henry V. Poor, South Mountain Poad, New City 

Miss Anne Poor, South **ountai * Poad, New City 

Aili 0. Manuel, Centenary, New City 

Eric Eri oson, PM 11irn* Hi 11 Poad, New City 

Hugo Polar, Jr., Centenary, New City 

Mrs. Walter I. Pleisher, Jr., (no address given) 

Lee Storch, 1*7 Pockwood Terrace, New City 

Poy Gold, u Trio^ Drive, New City 

Neal Pruzen, 11 Trior Drive, New City 

Mrs. N. Pruzen, 11 Trior Drive, New City 

William G. Freedman, 1Q Trion Drive, New City 

Beverly C. McElroy, 22® South Mountain Poad, New City 

Trudy Smith, 26 Valley View Poad, West Nyack. 

Joan Simola, 75 Wrights Lane, West Nyack. 

Becky Goto, 180 South Mountain Poad, New City. 

Paul Galdone, 23* Phillins uill Poad, New City. 

Jennelise R. Galdone, 234 Phillins Hill Road, New City. 

Lillian S. Gruenberg, 162 South Mountain Road, New City. 

Ernest M. Gruenberg, 262 Sout* Mountain Poad, New City. 

Charles Frankel (illegible), 319 Phillips Hill Road, New City. 

Joan H. Kind, 80 Saw Mill Road, New City. 

Ira Herrick, Sickeltown Road, West Nyack. 

Erwin Bennett, Adrianne Drive, New City. 

Fran Bennett, Adrianne Drive, New City. 

Marie D. Ericson, 3^9 Phillip? Hill Poad, New City. 

Padroic French, 228 South Mountain ^oad, New City. 

Anne French, 228 South Mountain Road, New City. 

Glen D. Smith, 26 Valley View Poad, West Nyack. 

fmth E. Gilmour, 5 Oak Terrace, New City. 

Anna Winkos, 61 Zukor Poad, New City. 

Mr. & Mrs. George A. Erikneer (illeerib^e), 91 Third St., New City. 

Mr. ft Mrs. George Shute, 104- Third St., New ©ity. 

Crat Bayer, One Mandom Terrace, New City. 

Edward E. Harkavy, 44* Buena VistaPoad, New City. 

Donald E. Jones, 7 Cypress Lane, New City. 

Cherlath Menak^r, 30? N. Main Street, New City. 

Joan May, 480 Tittle Tor Poad, New City. 

Melinda Talkincton, 595 Tittle Tor Poad, New City. 

Margaret H. Edwards, 263 Phillips Hill Poad, New City. 
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W\ MUND^: Ve novf com'3 to the point of rebuttal on the procedure, after 

which T will reed correspondence received *y the Tow- Board for and against, 

after which we w<ll adjourn ana the Board will subsequently make up its mind 

on this petition. 

B E R N A R D G. N F ^ E H O F ? arreared as a witness and testified as 

follows: 

EXAMINATION BY MP. TFACH^ENFEPG: 

Q Mr. Nemeroff, I would like to go through some of these questions that 

were raised by those who spoke in opposition and ask you to answer them, for the 

Board and for the people who are here. Do you recall Mr. Alan Anderson testifying 

-or stating, that a golf course can be conducted, sue*1 as the kind that you have, 

such as the kind you contemplate, in other than an TO district? You are familiar 

with the Zoning Ordinance of the Town. 

MR. ANDERSON: I am being misquoted. I did not say a golf course such as 

he conducts. I said a rclf e*ourse. 

MR. TRACHTENBEPG: Do you know what Mr. Nemeroff conducts, Mr. Anderson? 

MP. ANDEPSON: May T .just exttein? 

I then said that Mr. Nemeroff requests TO because he does not want his golf 

course to be a non-conforming use. That was the reason. 

MP. NEMEROFF: I don't think you said it that way. 

May I finish? T know the claque is here. Just take it easy. 

MR. ANDEPSON: Your neighbors, Mr. Nemeroff, not the claque. 

MP. MIJNDT: Continue your answers, Mr. Nemeroff. 

MP. NEMEROFF: He meant that, I think, and T understood him to mean it. 

I don't think Mr. T^achterber^ understood what Mr. Anderson meant. 

I was trying to heir you, Mr. Anderson. 

MP. ANDEPSON: Tt is a matter of record. 

By Mr. Tracbterberg: 

Q Explain the situation. 

A Actually, we conduct a e-olf course for profit. 

Tt does not always work out that way, but that's how we conduct it, within 

the term of the Zoning Ordinance. *e have a non-conforming use on our present 

golf course. The problem is this: on the 200 acres in the present LO district 

west of Zukor Road, running un on nte hill, there Bre seven golfholes. The 

Yellow district cannot be built if those seven golf holes remain there. They 

have to be removed so that we can *ave an orderly pattern of district of the tvpe 

we are trying to build, which is a researe'* center surrounding either a university 

or one central laboratory with ot^er industries around it. Sorwe necessarily have 

to remove ŝ 'x or seven holes from the tor of the hill to the east of Zukor po«d. 

Does that answer your question, Mr. Anderson? 

MP. ANDERSON: I didn't esk the ouestion. 

MP. NEMEROFF: I am sorrv. 

MP. T^ACP^FNRF^G: We are iu?=t cl^arin^ ur t>>e area in rebuttal. 

Q Mr. Nemeroff, Mr. Bi»»nnan made so^o references to former petit ons t>>at were 



f-5 1 ^ ^ . V/1 1 "! ""O'l o y r l n i r +->»o c- i t-,j q+- ; n ^ 4-r> f-v»<a PoqT.^*? 

h e rnp-nkp^ Vvofnr'o^ T 4 - ^ ^ ^ ^ f^^f- ^n + o** wV-of M-«. xa-r»Ar-~ qr, jqp^gr) w a s *>0t "* n "̂ he 

•pptitio"0 â d was P ^ ^ P T ** fi wno^f of his iisp"'*,af ;o^ o^ a sl^n of th<* ̂ e^ci!. 

fThe recoH was r«ad as follows: nM°. ̂ p^^TA^T: T am ara^r.rf this pet

it on. T *ave had occasion to examine a few past petitions. Tt was a 

cursory p\La^e. There is one t*H~^ that- has turn** up consistently, and 

that is tb* amount of mo^ev t*ev have always asked because t^ey have to do 

something. 

"Tn 19^, he said taxes w<=»re killing him. CTe has to sell at niece-

meal. Pe can't raise *uer en ̂ p dlub, and *>*» can't live like a land baron, 

and he appears like a wounded eao-î  and h* savs he is losinr his shirt, and 

if he doesn't n-et the thine-, he will sell itin the fall.") 

MP. NEMGROFF: This is in thepublic hearing, September 1?, 1956, at 

9:50 P.M.; present were Messrs. Denken, Teffrey, Welc^man, ^chersahl and Pillon. 

MP. MTJNDT: What are you reading from? 

MR. BPE*T*TAF: Prom the transcript of the hearing. 

MP. NFMEPOFF: You did not so designate it. 

M*5. BRENDAN: T mentioned it was in the hearing. 

Pead the minutes back. 

(Pecord was read.) 

MF. WEMEROFF: Let us have the dates. 

MR. BPE1WAN: This is your petitionof 195*» paragraph Ninth: 

"That your petition at the time of the submission of this petition 

to the Town Board will show that because of the application of the present 

Zoning Regulations and interpretation thereof in relation to the properties 

zoned by the petitioner herein that said petitioner has suffered and will 

continue to suffer" — that was my own interpretation of "wounded eagle" — 

"an undue hardship and in support thereof there will be sugmitted by affidavit 

and otherwise: 

"(1) A statement of the taxes paid by your petitioner for a period 

of nine years. 

"(2) A statement of losses incurred-by the petitioner in the operation 

and maintenance of its property for a peiod of at least seven years. 

"(3) A series of attempts at liquidation or disposal of petitioner's 

property and the results thereof." 

MR. NEMEROFF: That sounds just like it answers every question T 

asked. 

MP. BRENDAN: T haven't finished, Bemie. Come on. 

There is a $300,000 fimire that appears in the petition of 195*» 

paragraph 11: 

"That petitioner will construct an office and conference buildinp- on 

Parcel Wo. 2 providing for approximately *75 Club guests and ?S0 conferees at 

a cost of S300,000, which said building shall he a pilot building designating 

the additional future use of said CluK pronert^ in keepi^o* with its present 

occupation and use and enlarpin^ the same. That said addition of a $300,000 
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building to t̂ e t-̂x rr]1? nf ^ P ?ow^ of "larkrtown shall further assist the 

maintenance of an orderly ^rcwth î  t'̂e communis and lighten the tax load of 

Clarkstown v pi ̂ p^t^," 

That's tb<* f300,On *n +-*e l.Q5« petition. 

Now as to the one where you said you couldn't live 11k^ a land baron. 

This is the report of the public ĥ arinc* dated September 13, 19%, 9:?0 p.m.; 

"Mr. Nemeroff said it was sur?ested that the application be sent to the 

Planning Board. Hew said that one of his partners was a Congressman and that 

whenever tbev wanted to kill a bill it was sent t-o the House Utiles Committee and 

it died there pretty prood. He said he was sitting on this niece of property and 

his taxes are about $50,000 a year. He said he could not raise dues for the 

members or anybody else at the Club any more than they had been raised." 

HP. NEMEPOFF: May T sav this to you? 

MP. BPFNNAN: Wait a minute. You want tbe land baron bit. 

MP. NEMEPOFF: Bee if vou can find that. 

You are takin^ up valuable time. 

MP. BRENNAN: Th^e Is one point, buddy. You accused me of something. 

MP. NEMEPOFF: T accused you of this. 

MP. BRENNAN: listen to this: 

"Mr. Nemeroff said he thought buildinr that many houses without water, 

sewer, 8 park, schools, fire protection, would be criminal. He stated that those 

improvements would cost over a half million dollars. He stated he only wanted 80 

more bouses, after he had prepared his plot plan, explaining that if he made 

$5,000 on each house, which is hard to do on $30,000 or S40,000 houses, it would 

give him only 11400,000 which should -rove his motive was not making money." 

MP 

MP 

MR 

MP 

MP 

MR 

NEMEPOFF: Is that in that, too, Tom, or was that gratuitous? 

BRENNAN: The motive? 

NMEROFF: I love your Irish wit, but half of it T can't understand. 

BRENNAN: Now you want the land baron, and I will give you that. 

MUNDT: Are you satisfied? 

NEMEPOFF: ue will nwver satisfv me. T am satisfied to ret rid of that 

line. He attacked me so strongly, I did not want to quit. 

MR. MUNDT: Continue the rebuttal, please. 

MP. BRENNAN: May T ,iust answer the statement about the land baron? 

MP. NEMEPOFF: You made your point. 

MP. BRENNAN: You admit you couldn't live like a land baron? 

MR. NEMEPOFF: I admit it. You live next to me. 

MP. TRACHTENBERG: Mr. Mundt, gentlemen of the Board, if any of the Board 

members desire to ask any auestlons of Mr. Nemeroff, be is available now, or if 

anyone else in the audience desires tc ask any questions, he is available now. 

After that, I will rebut by a summation. 

MP. MUNDT: There are no other Questions at this point. 

MP. TRACHTENBERG: I don't know whether anyone else in the audience wants to 

ask Mr. Nemeroff any questions. 

HP. FnOHITNG: Mr. Nemeroff, on this P.??, do you intend to sell the lots 



or ^evplor it "vo^rself ? 

M'v. *!EMFFOFF: Tet me say this t~ you, fr. FmVirp-: T have had a+-

least ten or fifteen vsriou° ^v^pp of Guilders — by various kir-̂ s of builders, 

T **8V arv builder that wants to build $ IS, 000 houses or 1*5?, 000, $ 3 % 000 and 

$3^,000 houses — approach me. This afternoon T had probably one of the most 

substantial builders in Bergen Countv around this area — *e h^s not built 

anything yet — approach me on a «32,000, a house averaging about that. 

With any builder that T will let build or will sell to — and that 

is entirely possible, because T am in control — there will not be a house 

built on that territory now. I nay have to stop building because there is 

no market. T don't know what could happen. But we will not build one house 

on 120 acres less than $25,000 ner house. T make vou this firm promise. 

T know t>>ere are about ten or fifteen peorle here that are p-oiwsr to he up 

in about a minute or two an^ sav, "Well, how can we believe vou?" Well, I know 

what is built in Clarkstown. T don't interd to build anything like the 

genera] average of building here. 

I have this as my desire — and tins is not for selfish reasons only; 

I am not in any hurry to liquidate t^e land and T am in no hurry to build 

houses. I would like to build a community that will furnish membership 

to the Club and will be able to take fare of some of the executives that I think 

I can eventually have in the 10 district. Period. T am not looking to 

build houses and build up a poor neighborhood when I still have 700 acres 

to go, for any reason, and 300 of them or 3^0 of them are developed in 

what I think is as e*ood a country club or conference canter as there is 

in the east, probably better than most. 

MP. PPOHIJNG: Would this H2C,000 be a *eed restriction? 

MP. WEWEBOFF: Mav T say this to you? As to whether vou could put it 

into a deed legally, I don't think you could put it into a deed, frankly. 

But if permission were granted to me, I will sav this to you. T would 

still have to ^ro to the Planning Board. T will provide the name of the 

builder. The builder, incidentally, has built a development — T don't 

care to mention his name now; T am willing to disclose it to one or two 

members of the Board if thev will keep i* ccnfide*M»l, and you can pick 

any two you want — but the builder has built a very notable development 

in New Jersey, not far from here. T think t*e average was ?32,000. 

f:31 ,000 was the average home. His cheapest *cme was around *?,',000 or 

£28:,'000. He is now I think trie same builder who built about 40 houses at 

$31,000 or f 32,00O and is row bull direr |r» the same area *3°, 000 houses, 

on half acre, incidentally, a*** ATio-thin* a^re. 

HP. f̂lTwp'̂ : Po arv ot̂ ey* f^ard members have a onegfior at this 

time? 

WPf5. ^A^A PFTTTe B̂arr*- Tâ .e, BardoMa, W P W vor>>: We *^ve been 

speaking &y*c,)'t~ TO wM^h PT^ these 1 a^c^a^orv offices. ^mt what else does 

that rnean? von sai^ a university and medioa1 research. Put so far we 
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wi th •ppfpr-ê ^̂  to TO. T4- «qr, vp o^^^^^p.^ j s ^ orof.^^r je^er-|f> jqboratorv? 

M r. *T™H-^r^. vo^l * v̂ \j i<vo +-0 VnnW t
v*= r̂ arn* of t*>e ̂ omra^y? 

MP ° . rFTTj^. Voo 

M D. >r^MFPOF?: T am no+- ̂ rlvHer-ed to disclose it at t>e present time. 

Mpo #
 rFTTTr: Ycu can t^ll thetvpe of comparv. You don't have to rive the 

exact name. You ^a^ <*ay wh^tt^r It is a university or an office. 

pm, wTrMF̂ O?-"1: T «->Hrk T row *»«<» rh*» tenor of your ouestion. May I 

answer it, rlease? 

MP. PELTTP: Yes, please, 

MP. NEMEFOF*1: Tt is my hone that we could put a university there with a 

basic research center. We have also Keen negotiating with one or two departments 

of the government for a research l?boratorv. 

let me tie it up for you this way: TKe 93 acres that are kept in one 

acre zoning have beê t deliveratelv kept t**»t way because we do not want to let 

a company come in witli a lanre research center requiring 100 acres. We intend 

in the 200 acre research center to have either a university or a government 

laboratory, surrounded by smaller laboratories of large companies engaged in 

basic material research, and we would restrict them to ten acre plots. Tf we 

let in a large company, and there have been many reouests of the Fockland In

dustrial Committee for acreage anywhere from JO to 120 acres — 

MP. KJL'KHHAN: Would that government laboratory bea taxpayer? 

MP. NEMEPOFF: Yes, if it is rented. The university would not be. 

But the university would take ten acres and would probably be very attractive 

to other companies who could use this laboratory to the benefit of scientists. 

There would be no harm done in that area, because only ten acres would be taken 

out of taxation. 

Incidentally, T mirht say this to you, Mr. Iferaan. fry project — in fact 

I have a letter out now which was drawn about a month ago — is to donate ten acres 

to the university, at no cost to them. In other words, I think it is ^ood enough 

for me to rive them ten acres tr have them as an attraction for industry around 

that research center. 

MPS. PELLTS: How substantial are these things? You mentioned the univer

sity, but is it a definite thin*% or is it iust a theory? 

MP. NEMF^OFF: W<» have hae^ working on it fop six months. 

MPS. PETIT0: That gtill means nothing. 

MT . NEMEPOFF: What would von want me to do? Tf I had it in my rocket, 

believe me, T would love to have it. All T cp.n tell you is, T WOT»V on these 

thirds and T don't know ;f T can put them forth, but T do mv utmost to do it. 

T can't have srnarantees Br,1?' w ^ t~«*r> von r^n. 

MP. PETTI0: T wonl^ im^^ne tuat before a rlar like this would actually 

be put before the peonle of Clar^s^own s^methin^ ouite concrete ar\d definite should 

be there. 

MP. NEMEPOFF: What am T ruttin^ before t*e Town of ^larkstowi*? Do you 

know, reallv? Does envcr** ̂ ay** o*̂ "*-v*»-~ - i ^ +-̂ 0+- t-v,©̂  «*,*, t\AlrBr>^f% all the ob-
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• i p r » f i n r p e ? ^ O +">> n-rr V > , l r p , ~ ^ o n ] o " 4-V q 4- r» o " f—i -»re> T O U *5»">Tr <3«fv ^ P?*i 0 p - ^ O ' v t ^ t h a t 

VT-J 1 1 p - ^ -f-T-o f g y r v p ^ o ^ , ? T >> cV^v> »+- v^op-^r? o n e . 

Mi-""'. / , ^r>TO° : V ° ^gv** a c Ta '̂v as von. 

MP. TU/rppw -̂p- A^DF^P* 7 : Von a r » no+- jjo^ki^n- o u t f o r me. 

M P . V^MFDOVT?. T W O u l d V^?»I-P +-o l o o k a f t e r y o n . 

MP. MTPATnnr>. w 0 -pp-peona! r e m a r k s . 

MP. TO*EPO^P: T w i l l t r y n o t t o . 

MP. ALA*T ANDEPPOW: I don't mean to turn the tables. I wanted to ask 

this before, sincerely. Is there anything that you could ask for and keep 

the Zoning Map intact that would do you any good? T want to take the em

phasis off the Tow", ^ecaure actually I would like for you to get something 

that you want, because I think this is part of the problem. Ts there any 

way in which you could develop in the one acre zone, for instance, with the 

relaxation of some other rule than a restructing of the Zoning Plan? 

T should have said this before. T wanted to ask a ouestion, but for 

the benefit of the Board and everyone else here, I wanted the answer as well 

as the ouestion to he limited to 50 seconds, because I think it is really 

tiresome for us to go on and on this way. 

MP. NEME^OFF: Mr. Anderson, T will agree with that, but after all, 

the subject is a large subiert and it «ay require more than 30 seconds to 

answer it. 

There are many projects, Mr. Anderson. T will be sincere with you. 

The last thing I would like to build there would be houses, frankly, because 

all I could do is have a housing neighborhood next to an W district, and it 

certainly is nothing that T would want, for anv reason. 

There are things th*»t could be built there. Tf T would tell you the 

nature of the things, first of all, 1* would be laughable to yon. Tt would 

probably be the best economic t^ing thai- could he built on the land, BP^ 

certainly owning the large tnsot of land tbat T do, it is to my interest 

to have the best economic thing built on the 120 acres. The best thing would 

be, of course, a cemeterv, nerio^. 

MAPY ET.TT-«l (BardoMa, *. Y.>: Why donft you ^o that? 

Mp. NFME^OFF: Whv? T assur* von, the people in the neighborhood 

would be up \ n ar^r. Ever^bodv would raise the devil with me, talking 

about cemeteries. put T would love to build that. There would he no 

problems. I could get iust as much moneyreleased and use that monev. 

There would be no school nrohiem. Put gomehodv woul* fi <njre an̂ t-her* 

angle. And ther>e would b e no d-ainage "omrlaints. 

Mr, A^derso", would vou go for it? Pet u^ a petition. T will 

tell you what. T wi 11 b̂ -iî  o r»Ameter^. All right? The^e are plenty 

of reouests for it. We will have no <r»*ave -tones above the T^'urd. 

M^. A. A^PFP^O*: T h^Ve a ouestion for you, **r. ̂ emeroff. You iust 

said that the la°t tv>in«r vou wanted to vuild was houses. 

MP. MT?M - -DC.V'Y : Absolutely fv*p last. 
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VOM V-'Pt.T* + >- ^;ai*o +-v-,o "J Or» n~-r*o~ n f ' « a U Q ~ ~ A - r n « i n r . f A V,ji1.-1 /-»or i +• •-» 1 -io t o r v p t 

o p ^ i t o ^ t o ^ o i r o T n - f ^ o TT rro»-n^ T*. ^ t - v > 0 ^ v o n d P , v o n w n n l ' i K f , V o t o h u 1 "M t h e 

H n i J C P P f* 1 - r . c - t , ^ O t I p p f 

]vp; _ TTVMI: ' HPT. . t J ^ t t ^ o l a p t - tV»ir»H" T w A t j P V f a ^ t ^ o r o i <5 b n i l f s o p , T Wflp t vO 1 ! 

t o u n d e r s t a n d t^at*. 

M"0. A. AWDVT>o0*T: T^ o t ^ e r word? , von would *e> t h i s in t ea r s? . But l e t me 

e-flV t V i - i e . T ^nj n o t o u e o 1"A 0»">i ^ ^ VOI l^ r rO r"*W"'1 1 . AP t o t>> e ™ 0 ^ e y t h a t VOU r a i s e 

from buil^i^r" t*h*»pe ̂ mic^e^ b'M* f»â  t>>p t«xpev«>T»o *->« qcf̂ -̂ned t^ot fM o. 1© ôinp* 

to build ur an 10 ^o^e •-ĥ t ip troiv.v f* reduce the school tax**? and other ex

penses that are goin^ to come about because of the houses? You are asking us 

to make this kin* of an agreement, 

W°. ^"EMEPPFE: T apv TO'*! this, Mr. Anderson: At this rrer*»rt time we have 

had the "ZoriT" PrdineT<o-f». ^ o v,̂ 41 ̂ir??̂  TT» '"lankPtowr ^as hppf wild. When vou 

say it hap ^ee-" built ordenlv, every niece of land in the Town ip on a third of 

an ac^e zoning, rood, bad or indifferent, and T have been at Town Board meetings 

when the drainage problem and other problems came up, only because of inferior 

land. The third of an acre has practically been used up. Tf it is buildable, 

it has been sold. 

MP. A. A^DE^SON: T don't arree to that, but ^o ahead 

ME. WEMEPOFF: T urouldn't expect you to, but T make this statement, and if 

you tell me it is different, T think Mr. Ward is here, and maybe he will tell you 

how much land is left in one third of an acre zoning. 

MP. A. ANDEHoON: You are not answeronr my Question. 

MP. WEMEPOFF: let me sav this to you: When T say the last thing T want 

to build is housing, if tomorrow T would get a contract that could supply the 

sewer that I must provide for anybody that is going to build a laboratory office 

in that district, T assure you I would not build a house, number one. 

Number two, T have a plan for you, if you are so public spirited, Mr. 

Anderson. T suggested nothing that would not be done in ttte community, although 

it is done in other communities. Maybe the times are not desoerate enough for the 

peorle here, but in time, if *-his continues, your tax rate will be at least double— 

MP. A. ANDEFRON: Did you bear Mr. May's report? 

MP. NEMRFOFF: T have heard ™r. May's report ad infinitum. 

MP. A. ANDEFPON: That is not what J asked you. You were out in the hall 

and you were not in the room when he read it. 

MP. *TFMEPOFF: T have a copv rifht here and T V^P^. it. 

X,et ye otay wit* tt^e. Tet me explain something to you, WT», Anderson. 

Tf T had the monies to bu^ld a sewer, hpi^p- the water to the n^orertv, 

or build roads, T would not nlan to sell the property at all. T will do this: 

Tf this ^own wishes, if you a^e po ^'^lic spirited, T will take t^e 1?0 acres — 

MP. A. A.*TDEpcO*T: Yoti Veer savin** public spirited. Or heWRif 0f The Dells, 

you fear. 

jvfp# ^TvMv-pQp-p. j u s t l e t rie f i n i s h . Tf vou a r e r i r h t , I w i l l change i t t o 

p rove vou s^e v**onr. Let me f ^ i s v , M~. \-(*»^<*o^. 
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4-Vio -ng-r»V +-he" , r " » " + • t n >>n i "M . VQ-., -* q r . r>s~V n»*» ^-» +-V, V n n ^ e m r o - " QC, v p , a - r * p . 

A l l r i g ^ t ? I w i l l " c p -Ĥ f* ^ o " ' ' ? t o v u i T ' ' tv»p « ;p W p r p t 

M P . *.. .^^TOcnT.T. v p , , f 8 ^ "q-n r ^ ^ h * - . " Are you a s k i n g me a q u e s t i o n ? 

MP. MVMfDOFF: ^ p n T p e t t o g n i l f > f , t 1 o r ^ T w i l l a s k y o u o n e < v / h 8 t a r e 

you for? 

PP. A. A*TPEr °̂0*T: T aw for p-ood zoninn-. 

MP. MUNDT: Let us have order, 

MP. A. A*!DÊ O*r: He storred, Mr. Mundt. He asked we a question. I am 

being ouite honest about this. we asked m*» a question ard ^e \ s not answering 

mine. He is talking all around the barn. 

MP. MtJNDT: What is your Question? 

MP. A. ANDEP^ON: My question is, are ̂ ou asking the community to 

make a bargain with you, that you are going to use the money for building 

those houses to build up laboratory offices? 

MP. NEMFPOFP: Yes. 

MP. A. ANDEPS01T: T am sorry, but T don't think that any community 

could be asked to make bargains with individual taxpayers. 

MP. *TEMEPOFF: I will show you this community (indicating). T will 

show you a thousand communities in the United States that do that, to build 

up industry. 

MR. A. ANDERPON: It can be done through official channels. As you 

said earlier, or as Mr. Trachtenherg said earlier, or somebody, within our 

Zoning Law there is a provision for averaging. You are not making use of 

any of the provisions of our Zoning Law. You want to write your own. T am 

opposed to it, again. 

MP. MtMDT: Miss Poor? 

MIPS POOP: TF Mr. Wemeroff had one solid, clear-cut issue that he 

could bring here, one offer that was positive enough that he could speak 

about in this room, I don't see why it is a secret when the whole community 

is involved, when the Zoning Laws are asked to be chanered, when some citizens' 

rights as property owners are involve^. T don't see why it is a private 

secret. So that if he has something to off^r, I don't see that this 

community would refuse if he $*& have a real offer. I don't think that 

he has, as a communitv member, distinguished himself as inter«Ft in rublic 

works, aside from his interest in The Dells. 

W°. MIWDT: The Chair will entertain one mor® question and then re

turn to the rebuttal on ^ P -pert of Mr. Trachtenherg. 

MR. FAGEL: T ,just want to know why Mr. Wemeroff did not sell that 

100 acres that people want to buy it for a million dollars and solve his 

problems and ours. 

You were offered to sell 100 acres by someone. Why didn't you sell 

the 100 acres? 

MP. TPACHTEfTBEPG: This is getting a little irrelevant. 

MP. FESTA: That is a personal thing. 
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MP. T^^uTivwpvDr,: Mr., i-fim̂ t, ra«v T WS ̂  this thin^- UT,? 

jvp̂  mp̂ r-uTt-Mxitprj. T WOuld iurt 1.1 VP i-o summarize in rebuttal and .just rick 

out some of the >>i p-h 1 io-h t s HAT.P# 

PP. BRF^NAN: Just * roint o** ord*»r hefore we m u into this summarv. 

T t>ink what has been PRtablishe* is, Mr. Nemeroff said something extremely 

important to us and to the community. He said that if we did something for him 

he would do something for us. He has ]aid out nothing. He has put nothing down. 

He has asked everything on a one-way street, so far as this petition is concerned. 

He said he needs money to ro forward with an undesignated and sn unknown plan and 

in an unknown manner. I think at this particular time he should give us some idea 

with respect "to this. 

When you have a buyer you have a seller, you have terms of agreement, terms 

of area, what he wants, what he receives in turn. From what he has said so far, 

T think there is a duty on him to explain with respect to what specific improve

ments and roads are in the general area which he intends to put them forward, and 

they should be included on that map and made part of the petition that appears 

before us now. 

MP. NEMEPCFF: May T say this: The reason that these things must he pre

pare^ in advance, and the reason that T cannot make a disclosure, is that no 

company livinp that has seen the experiences of American Cjanamidj-United Aircraft 

in Rye, and other companies in other areas, will come into any area unless they 

have it zoned, unless they have the facilities that they are entitled to. Your 

present Zoninp Ordinance zoned inferior land throughout the Town for industry. 

They will not accept it. 

MP. BPFNNAN: Let me say this much, So far as what has happened, we have 

given an LO piece of property, and you say you need $500,000 — 

MR. ITEMFROFF: Seven. May I tell you why? 

MR. MUTTDT: I think that everyone here of reasonable temper will agree that 

we can't allow this to continue ad infinitum. Contrary to popular belief, the Boa^ 

is going to be able to make up its mind on what it is listening to this evening. 

If we could wind this up, T think we are beginning to reach a stage where we are 

getting a little bit repetitive. 

(Witness, Mr. Wemeroff, excused.) 

MP. TPAOH^F^FRG: Mr. Mundt, despite our differences of opinion, basicallv 

we agree upon one premise, and that is that we believe in good noniner and p-ood 

planning, and we all agree that we want sue* condition to exist in this Township. 

Tn listening to the various reorl*» who have come up and who have discussed 

the proposition oprosin^ the petition, T have vet to hear from anvone of them a 

plan or a rro-nositjon that would be comprehensive enough to hel out and to re

lieve the one bir t'-'inp t*et w<* ̂ re all worried about so much: relief of the 

taxes. One person s^eaVg about the golf course, o'ood sense, cood business sense. 

Good legal business sense states t^at if von a~e tro\v^ to -ut an installation in, 

it should be in the wort*** ?on.e, an* ?»f»t a non-conforming use. 

Another person savs, "T a**1 *» new "i»wKeT» ^ Th e community and T am fnanV to 

state that T don't have anv f*"~s ^ H fi><-«, v,,* T PTn o ^ ^ t -it." yn*t could 



T^o "ho o c r j a i n c t ? 

ftr>o-t-Vi r>T» o ~ o rtornoe? o l r t ' - r - •a^.-? - h p l V o a V o ^ f a ^ l m r r>f w o ^ c a ^ R"^ i ^ h r ^ o f i ^ . 

T dOC ' t r ' f l -pp "how v m i f i ( T ] ] i " P i +- V»ov/ ^ a p v f i ^ — o n r Q*>>* +-r*oo i > n n n ^ e t o h e l p 

in vmir ar»i +-v,rnef
; c. ^ o fart remair^ t*°t 1** y»u ^ave ^60 acre? and vou 

can "build on ore a^-e zoni^r +"C ̂ ^e +:nrte of an acre npr house, and you are 

merely asking to build 190 houses, tbe-̂ e is a benefit: to the communitv. 

T don't "are whether ^0u "all It- a rl ay on arithmetic or whether vou call 

it 9 nlav on words. You lust ~&r\'+ get awav from that hasic fact, 

T father a ser^-e, from some of the remarks made, that some people are 

skeptical. Why don't vou *o this &V* whv don't you do that an^ why don't you 

do something else. T ask you, in all reason,what more can the petitioner 

do than take ^50 acres out of ahousing development and put it into a ssone 

that the exnerts tell us is one of the highest tyre %ones in existence in 

this country? 

T don't have to remind you of the fact that the TO Tone requires a 

minimum plot of fev acres. What housing -»one requires that? Bull diner can 

only be to the extent of 3^ percent. 

We hAar many words, s^me farcy, some otherwise, about all the com

prehensive plans in the making, how important it is to wait for those rlans 

to materialize and be adopted. *?obody knows the time element; nobody knows 

what the cniarartoe \« that they will he p>ood nla^s, or that they will help 

out, 0"̂  that they will h*» prpnd for this community. 

Tf we have something in our possession that means something of merit, 

then let us have it. If anyone will come lorward with a plan that is good 

for this Township other than the plan we propose$ j will withdraw the 

petition. But let us see the plan. 

One speaks of *~he pr^Mem of sewers. Well, we don't control the 

sewers. Tt is basic i~h.a+ sowers must be approve^ by the health Department. 

I don't care what the waste is. Tt s^ill must be approved by and conform with 

Health department reouirements. 

One speaks about probable pollution of water. Tf there is a company 

dealing in water service in the United States that is more strict than the 

Hackensack Water Company, T want to know who it is. 

Lake Lucille comes in with a^ obi^ction, but puts it this way: "We 

have no objection. We just don't like it." What that means, T don't know. 

Whether that has merit or not, T don't know. 

What else is there that they offer i«~ its place? But they tell you 

we expect you to reject it. Maybe we have reached a state of dictatorship 

in Rockland County, T don't know. But when it reaches that point, now 

we got something really serious to think about. 

T sense e feeli^p from whet is said that many people here tonight 

don't really understand the make-up of an TO district. T say that be

cause there have been some remarks abo\it buying more land for LO district. 

To those people T would suggest that instead of P'ettin^ the information 

second on tbir-H h^pr}, they should refer +"0 the Ordinance* itself* and read 



""•Oil rrpv^f- I o m p r V*-1/•>*.', +-•. .-+- " *- 4 ^ o - ^ O r> f +-~ «a V, , ~. V, ,->--+- +- »m. . p r> f ^ o ^ i ^ O - ^ i e - f - f i « »" p v p f 

T Vioirci TT<â  t >» o c i f a f o " 0 " t e i )Wi 4- *-. rl V,T Mr* #
 M«*V. T t if? a"*! w e l 1 a^d ^OOd tr\ 

s a v t»-«gt T r>rr\ pin oxT^r^, t-v>~+- T r>o-p•»#=>c-«»-+- n^ deal wi t^ oommuri t i as that H^yp 

nlanninf a^d -ro^i^r p*---ô i owe-, P̂ -"3 +-̂ at no-H^n0* s'̂ alT ^e "'one until a "Plan is 

devised. ^y that time, rp»ii-ipmpii) gi i +^c* land available will have been dissirated 

because by that time it will be all de\reloped. 

And "̂ be one tMr>cr that nobody points out, the one tMro- t^at nobodv brings 

here to the poard to heir solve this problem — I don't care whether he is for on 

against — is what can be ''one 1n this Township that everybody knows needs in the 

way of tax relief. T*e plan submitted, considered, hashed, rehashed, discussed, 

debated, arrued, is t^e only rlan that has been ever submitted, thought about, 

reasoned through, by peorle wbo have srent numerous hours on it and have approved 

it. Now what is the substitute for this? And where is the substitute? Ar<~ we 

poinr to s^t back and wait until next year, when the tax roes up a^ain and many 

more facilities are reouired? 

Tn closing, there is one other tMnsr. Much effort has been put into the 

development of this TO district by the petitioner mr\<\ a staff of exnerts. Tt is 

not unreasonable to state that a person's private business is his private business. 

I don't want to know what -is in vour rocket, snri T have no r^pht to, and you have 

no right to ask me what is in my pocket. "Despite the free advice, do this and do 

that, and why can't you do this and do something else, T make this offer to the 

Board, and T have made this offer to the ̂ oard once before at another sitting 

last year: We have no secrets from t M s Board. Tf there is anvthinp- vou want to 

know as to what is vei^nr done, an* the effort exerted in promoting this TO 

district, that information is yours in confidence. T can't do anv better than 

that. 

M^. DEWING: T respectfully ask rermission for IS seconds to make a short 

roi.nt with respe^t to summation. 

MP, MT|wpfp: Actij»llv it isn't necersar^, wr. ̂ e^ino-^ accord inn* to what we 

said up here. 

WP. DFWING: T do renuest ore** ep*air., ̂ e^ause in effect a challenge has 

been thrown down h«re. T will make it five seconds, if you wi sh. T think that 

challenge should be answered. 

MP. MTTNDT: let me rut it t*"»s way. 

Will those here allow Mr. Deminp* be the last one? 

MP. TPACHTFNBFDG: We have no objection to anvbodv sneakine* th»ir» mind 

at all . 

HP. DEMT^G: Mr. Trachte^hen"* has asked why no one has come forward with 

a rlan other than ^he Dells rlan. T '•'ill HISVA mxr **»•>«?wer very sample. 

It is^.'t ur to u c +0 nom<~ forward w*.th a plan. Wo ̂ ave a Flan: the 

^1 arks town Zoning* Ordinance %***rt 

MP. TPACHTFNBFPG: And the proof of the ruddinsr is that there has been 

no tax relief, that we don't have substantial industrial development in this 

Townshin wh°re it is so ?p',orsPT"". 
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U p l ^ p v p p ~\ p>+•-t-n ^ "h<s->-»o **T»r«*''' M?|r»-f-i»> "2r\-r>v*r> o i r D o ! , ' u i f - p w O O d n p 1 "*re 

V/P v"'H",.,r^ o rtrmmyrti r « p f i o ^ *̂TT f - A l o r i l i f > i i o -Pr»fjf»5 A"JtTm A n ^ e r F O 1 0 " '̂̂ O * T O P t h 

^ id^ le tov /n T ,oed, *Tew C i t y , w^o ws w f p t o ^o on r e c o r d a? opposed . 

We have *> communicat ion from M r s . **arvin Thalenbersr , Pidp*e Poad, 

^ew C i t v , who wi shes t o *><=» e^+'.ere^ a s opnosed . 

Tn t h e same v » i r , we >»ave a communicat ion from "Louise P . L a s l e y , 

430 South Mountain P o s ^ , *r»w n i t v , a l s o o n r o s e d . 

These •'"hat T Jim r»<&pHŜ pr now an** ^ ^ c s e ^ : 

We have a telegram received, sip-ned Pr. *<• Mrs. Perry Pudson, as 

opposed, no addrepp. 

Also opposed is Cora M. Cowles, 331 Worth Main Street, Wew City. 

Also onposed is C. L. Cowles, 3*1 Worth Hair Street, Few City. 

Also opnosed is Mrs. Thomas J. Win«r, SO Saw Mill Poad, Wew City. 

Also onposed is Mr. Thomas Kiner, RO Saw Mill Poad, Wew City. 

Opposed, Herman Posse, F^B, Wew City. 

Finally, also opposed, Mr. Harold taskey, 430 Sout* Mountain Poad, 

New City, Wew York. 

These letters will be inoorrorated in the file of The Dells, Inc. 

hearinc. 

We have heard a creat deal of testimony on behalf of theBoard. T 

want to thanv evervone Here for keeping a verv even line of temper. I am 

sure that T can assure you, on behalf of the ot^er members, that we will 

study thi s record thoroughly, exhaustively, and try to reach the proper 

conclusion. 

Thank vou for coming. 

MP. KFPWAW: I think we as a Tour should express our appreciation 

to the verv fine ioh of moder̂ tirn- do^e "Mr our Supervisor. 

(Applause) 

MP. WUNDT: The Chair will entertain a motion to adiourn. 

MP. NOPT^TTP: o0 move. 

p p . T?-POUTT^C: T second i t . 

o t i o^ c a r r i e d , ^ 

(W^ereu^o^, a t 11 :oc> ^ . m . , t*>e Hparirip ir> t e a b o v e - e n t i t l e d m a s t e r 

was adiourned.) 

Town P a l l TOW1* POAT MF*T?WT S:00 
Wew C i t y F e b . ?mr IQ^O 
P r e s e n t : M e s s r s , Mundt, F r o h l i n ^ , Panko, W o r t h r u r , Welelraan. 

Mr. Weichman moved t h e f o l l o w i p r r e s o l u t i o n : 
pvQOT.vrrn, tv»pt- t*>*» w^yrr* Br>ar^ M ê4--«nn- m i n u t e s of T?p"h. l^r "I °60 and 

Spec . H e a r i n g s of F e ^ . ISth 1QAO be a r ^ r ^ v ^ ^ as r ^ e ^ . 
Qecon^e'5' b^r Mp. MOT»+-V^T.IJT>#

 T r ^animousl^ app roved . 
Mrs. Dean ° e i f r i e d , r : r e p . of t h e Q ur Dial ha rden C l u b , w n m i e t , N . Y . , 

a p p e a r e d , and r e q u e s t e d t h e Town of CI a r k s town p a s s &.r> o r d i n a n c e a ^ a i p p t t h e 
removal of t o p s c i l in tb<» "̂own of -1 s r k s ^ o w r . °he su r r res ted t h e f o l l o w i n g : 


